
Page 1 of 4 
 

   

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, APRIL 13, 2015  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET 
 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

15C‐0122. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

15C‐0123.  Roll Call 

15C‐0124.  Establishment of Quorum 
15C‐0125.  Pledge of Allegiance 
15C‐0126.  Reports of Standing Committees 
15C‐0127.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

 
LIQUOR COMMISSION 

 
ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
15C‐0127.  Discussion and Possible Action on Renewal of Liquor Licenses for the Period 

May 1, 2015 through April 30, 2016 
5‐8  

 
CONSENT AGENDA CA15‐06 

 
ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
15C‐0128.  Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of March 23, 

2015 and Special City Council Meeting of April 6, 2015  
9‐19 

 
15C‐0129.  Approval of Renewal of an Independent Contractor Agreement for 

Maintenance/Janitorial Services with Jeremy White and White Construction, 
Inc. for Turner Hall for the Period April 14, 2015 through April 30, 2016 

20‐23 

Page 1 of 114



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
15C‐0130.  Approval of Renewal of an Independent Contractor Agreement for 

Maintenance/Janitorial Services with Jeremy White and White Construction, 
Inc. for the Public Works Building for the Period April 14, 2015 through April 
30, 2016 

24‐26 

 
15C‐0131.  Approval of Tour Operators Licenses and Tour Service Licenses for the Period 

May 1, 2015 through April 30, 2016 
27 

 
15C‐0132.  Acceptance of February 2015 Financial Report  ‐‐ 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
15C‐0133. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on VisitGalena.org Fiscal Year 2015‐16 
Operating Budget 

28‐47 

 
15C‐0134. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Resolution Supporting and Authorizing 
the Creation of a Special Service Area Within the City of Galena for 
Ambulance Service   

48‐49 

 
15C‐0135. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for Emergency Repairs to 
Diagonal Street  

50 

 
15C‐0136. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Changer Order #3 for the Fire Training 
Facility 

51‐55 

 
15C‐0137.  

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract with Adam Johnson 
Architecture for Design Services at the Fire Training Center Storage Building 

56 

 
15C‐0138. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Cost Recovery Invoices for the March 5 
Burlington Northern Sante Fe Train Derailment 

57‐66 

Page 2 of 114



Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 

 
15C‐0139. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Purchase of a Pay and Display Machine 
for the Commerce Street Parking Lot 

67‐70 

 
15C‐0140. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for the Installation of a Fence at 
the Dodge Street Water Tower Site 

71‐74 

 
15C‐0141. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of an Amendment to 
an Annexation Agreement Previously Entered into for a Development Known 
as “Cobblestone Crossing”  

75‐81 

 
15C‐0142. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Fiscal Year 2015‐16 Operating Budget 

82‐85 

 
15C‐0143. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the City of Galena and the Jo Daviess Conservation Foundation for 
Gateway Park 

86‐105 

 
15C‐0144. 

 
Warrants  

 
106‐114 

 
 

15C‐0145. 
 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
15C‐0146. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
15C‐0147. 

 
Mayor’s Report   

15C‐0148. 
 
Motion for Executive Session Including:  

 

 Section 2 (c) (1) – Employee hiring, firing, compensation, 
discipline and performance 

 
 Section 2 (c) (5) – Purchase or lease of real estate 

 

 Section 2 (c) (11) – Pending, probable or imminent litigation  
 

 Section 2 (c) (21) Review of Executive Session Minutes 

 

15C‐0149. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on Employee Hiring  

 

15C‐0150. 
 
Adjournment 

 

Page 3 of 114



Page 4 of 4 
 

CALENDAR INFORMATION 

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

City Council    Mon. April 27  5:00 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. May 7  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. May 13  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, April 10, 2015 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

Page 4 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS  
 

101 Green Street          P.O. Box 310          Galena, Illinois 61036 
Telephone: 815‐777‐1050          Facsimile: 815‐777‐3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor & Council 

From: Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

CC: Mark Moran, City Administrator 

Date: April 9, 2015 

Re: Liquor License Renewals 

Attached please find a list of Liquor License Renewals for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.  The applicants 
listed have submitted complete applications and have made payment in full.  I have not received 
renewal applications from Keg & Cask Liquor or Chocolat’.  I am also waiting for the background 
check to come back on a new manager for Cannova’s.  Provided the applications and needed 
information are received, these applicants will be presented at the next regular meeting.   
 
If you have any questions or would like to see the applications, please feel free to contact me.   

Page 5 of 114



City of Galena Table Lists - Liquor License Renewal List for Agenda Page:     1

Apr 09, 2015  07:30PM

Report Criteria:

Business.Account Number =  
120,130,140,150,160,1160,1362,220,230,240,1050,1368,250,260,290,300,310,320,330,340,360,370,380,390,400,410,420,430,460,530,540,580,640,650,1180,136
5,490,1020,531,500,510,520,381,1070,1090,1364,1370,1360,350,1260
Business.License Status = "Active"

License Type.License Type = "CLASS A LIQUOR","CLASS B LIQUOR","CLASS C LIQUOR","CLASS D LIQUOR","CLASS F LIQUOR","CLASS H  
LIQUOR","CLASS I LIQUOR","CLASS J LIQUOR","CLASS K LIQUOR","CLASS L LIQUOR","CLASS M LIQUOR","CLASS N LIQUOR","CLASS N  
LIQUOR","CLASS O LIQUOR","CLASS P LIQUOR"

Business Classification DBA Mangr Name Date Paid Amount Paid

A

A PARADISE BAR & GRILL LINDA K. PLUYM

A VFW POST #2665 NORMA  J. MONTGOMERY

A WINE STUDIO OF GALENA, INC. JAMIE CARROLL

A THE GRAPE ESCAPE CATHERINE A. KOUZMANOFF

A THE CORNERSTONE, LLP LEHN M. DUHACK

A THE GOLD ROOM RORY C. MACDONALD

A DILLON'S HM, INC. NONE

B

B HARTIG DRUG COMPANY #5 DENNIS G. WILLS

B WAL-MART SUPERCENTER #5044 MELISSA MCCULLY

B R & L GAS MART MARILYNN MUCHOW

B TAMMY'S PIGGLY WIGGLY FRESH MARKET TAMMY L. LEE

B GALENA RIVER WINE & CHEESE TAYLOR, JULIE

C

C BLACKHAWK AERIE NO. 952 PATRICIA A. LYDEN

C GALENA ELKS MARY J. CHAPMAN

D

D IRISH COTTAGE BOUTIQUE HOTEL & FRANK O'D BASIL CONROY

D VINNY VANUCCHI'S JACK F. COULTER

D LOS AZTECAS II MEXICAN RESTAURANT HECTOR MORAN

D EMMY LOU'S RESTAURANT & LOUNGE REBECCA A. RUCHTI

D DESOTO HOUSE HOTEL DOMINIQUE A. CROSS

D LOG CABIN RESTAURANT & LOUNGE FOTIS RIGOPOULOS

D STONEY CREEK INN OF GALENA KATIE WIENEN

D PERRY STREET BRASSERIE RENEE A. DOWE

D

D FRIED GREEN TOMATOES FRED L. BONNET

Page 6 of 114



City of Galena Table Lists - Liquor License Renewal List for Agenda Page:     2

Apr 09, 2015  07:30PM

Business Classification DBA Mangr Name Date Paid Amount Paid

D GOBBIE'S SAM F. RIGOPOULOS

D MARKET HOUSE RESTAURANT, INC. LAURA L. HEFEL

D FRITZ AND FRITES FRED S. GRZESLO

D DURTY GURT'S DEANNE M. LIVINGSTON

D ONE ELEVEN MAIN JACK F. COULTER

D LITTLE TOKYO QI JUN ZHU

D GALENA BREWING CO. KATHLEEN S. CAMERON

D CAMPECHE RESTAURANT ALEX LOPEZ

D AYALAS MEX-AMERICAN STEAK HOUSE, INC. JUAN S. DORANTES AYALA

D EMBE HOSPITALITY, INC. MARY E. FORSBERG

D OTTO'S PLACE LTD JOHN B. SLIMP

D CHEF IVO'S PLACE IVO PUIDAK

D VICTORY CAFE BRUCE/NANETTE GLASGOW

H

H GALENA CELLARS KARAN J. LAWLOR

H MASSBACH RIDGE WINERY PEGGY A. HARMSTON

I

I GALENA BREWING CO. WARREN BELL

J

J HAPPY JOE'S PIZZA & ICE CREAM SHANNON AUSTIN

J PROCENTO'S PIZZERIA JACK A. EDENS

K

K GALENA CONVENTION CENTER WILLIAM A. WINSLOW

L

L FRIED GREEN TOMATOES CO. (CATERING) FRED L. BONNET

M

M

M FARMERS  GUEST HOUSE DONALD/SUSAN STEFFAN

M CLORAN MANSION BED & BREAKFAST CHERYL A. FARRUGIA

M THE STEAMBOAT HOUSE CAROL L. GEBELT

M ALDRICH GUEST HOUSE ROBERT J. MAHAN

O

O BLAUM BROTHERS DISTILLING COMPANY MICHAEL W. BLAUM

Page 7 of 114



City of Galena Table Lists - Liquor License Renewal List for Agenda Page:     3

Apr 09, 2015  07:30PM

Business Classification DBA Mangr Name Date Paid Amount Paid

P

P STILLMAN'S  INN DAVID P. ANDERSON

P RAMADA GALENA MICHAEL B. SCHOLZ

Report Criteria:

Business.Account Number =  
120,130,140,150,160,1160,1362,220,230,240,1050,1368,250,260,290,300,310,320,330,340,360,370,380,390,400,410,420,430,460,530,540,580,640,650,1180,136
5,490,1020,531,500,510,520,381,1070,1090,1364,1370,1360,350,1260
Business.License Status = "Active"

License Type.License Type = "CLASS A LIQUOR","CLASS B LIQUOR","CLASS C LIQUOR","CLASS D LIQUOR","CLASS F LIQUOR","CLASS H  
LIQUOR","CLASS I LIQUOR","CLASS J LIQUOR","CLASS K LIQUOR","CLASS L LIQUOR","CLASS M LIQUOR","CLASS N LIQUOR","CLASS N  
LIQUOR","CLASS O LIQUOR","CLASS P LIQUOR"

Page 8 of 114



Regular Board Meeting  23 March 2015 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 23 MARCH 2015 
 
 

15C-0100 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 23 March 2015.  
 
15C-0101 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Painter, Renner 
 
15C-0102 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
15C-0103 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.   
 
15C-0104 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
None. 
 
15C-0105 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Ted Forsberg, St. Matthews Lutheran Church – Forsberg stated as President of the Council for 
St. Matthew’s Lutheran Church, he would like to request that some improvements be made to the 
streets that surround the old city cemetery.  This would allow for some additional parking for not 
only the church but for the residents in the area as well.  He advised a storm a while back 
knocked down trees which broke the fence.  To date that fence has not been restored.  The cost 
of a few minor improvements would greatly benefit the visuals for that wonderful park and 
cemetery as well as would benefit the neighborhood.   
 
Bob Swalley, A to B Cab Company – Swalley advised since the passing of Dave O’Donnell 
there has been no cab company.  With approval tonight, they would like to carry on that service to 
Galena.  They have purchased some of O’Donnell’s equipment as well as have one of their own 
licensed.   
 
John Thiltgen, Jackson Concrete – Thiltgen thanked the Council for reconsidering the bids on 
the crosswalks and sidewalks.  They were present to answer any questions council may have.  
Thiltgen noted they were low bid on 5 of the 6 items bid.   
 
At this time City Attorney Nack swore in those wishing to testify in the Public Hearing.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Motion:   Bernstein moved, seconded by Painter, to open the Public Hearing on the proposed 
Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

Page 9 of 114



Regular Board Meeting  23 March 2015 

15C-0106 – PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2015-2016 
 
Testimony:  Ted Forsberg, St. Matthews Lutheran Church – Forsberg stated he would hope 
the comments he made prior would stand at this time.   
 
Rick Pariser, High Street – Pariser asked the Council to not take the nickels and dimes for 
granted.  One item that came up in the possible cuts is the $25,000.  He is curious what that 
particular item is.  Pariser stated he noticed in the narrative that the Turner Hall Renovation 
Project over the next 5 years is $750,000.  He feels that is a lot of money for a building that is 
really not functional anywhere near 80 percent of the time.  He questioned how that investment 
would be recouped.  This figure doesn’t include annual maintenance costs.  This is money people 
would like to see go into other improvements.  He questioned what other properties the city owns.  
The costs for heating and electric are significant.  Pariser feels there is a lot of the public that 
does have some concerns.  Pariser asked the Mayor to expound on his comments made in the 
Telegraph Herald dated March 22, 2015 with regard to the LDGF funds.  He read the article and 
would like to get a better sense as to how it would impact the viability of city operations.  While it 
is a lot of money, he doesn’t see where we are teetering on the edge if we don’t realize it.  He 
stated he would also like to hear from the Council on the proposed cuts.   
 
Motion:   Greene moved, seconded by Kieffer, to close the Public Hearing on the proposed 
Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA15-06 
 

15C-0107 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
MARCH 09, 2015 AND SPECIAL MEETING OF MARCH 16, 2015 
 
15C-0108 – SECOND READING AND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
CHAPTER 79, “PARKING TIME LIMITED” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF GALENA 
 
15C-0109 – APPROVAL OF 2015 RATES, WAGES AND HOURS AND SEASON FOR THE 
ALICE T. VIRTUE WATER PARK 
 
15C-0110 – APPROVAL OF RENEWAL OF JANITORIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
MARY HALSTEAD FOR THE PERIOD MAY 1, 2015 THROUGH APRIL 30, 2016 
 
15C-0111 – ACCEPTANCE OF JANUARY 2015 FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve Consent Agenda CA15-05 as 
presented.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

Page 10 of 114



Regular Board Meeting  23 March 2015 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
15C-0010 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE AN 
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE JAMES B. VINCENT TRUST, CASEY’S RETAIL 
CORPORATION AND THE CITY OF GALENA FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A CASEY’S 
GENERAL STORE ON APPROXIMATELY FOUR ACRES AT THE INTERSECTION OF US 
ROUTE 20 AND RED GATES ROAD 
 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Greene, to approve a resolution to execute an Annexation 
Agreement between James B. Vincent Trust, Casey’s Retail Corporation and the City of Galena 
for the construction of a Casey’s.   
 
Discussion:  Council felt it was a good agreement and thanked staff for their work on it.   
 
Fach recommended adding T-Connectors to the lines when they do the excavation for water and 
sewer.  This way when we want to extend down the highway or Red Gates Road it will be all set 
to go.  Moran advised as of now that is a private line.  When they construct they will install a 
manhole.  At that time it will become the City’s property.  Once we have the manhole it gives us 
the ability to connect another pipe.  Either way it will be a new excavation and a new connection.   
 
Painter questioned if the issues with the signage has been resolved.  Moran advised the plans 
were submitted to the County.  The City has agreed to accept the building and signage plans.  
There were three sign issues that would not comply with our sign ordinance; Wall sign, canopy 
sign and monument sign with electronic changeable gas prices.  What has been identified came 
from the review by the Zoning Administrator.  At that time those variances were identified.   
 
Bernstein noted as part of the agreement Casey’s will deal with the stop light issues at that 
intersection.  She questioned if some decisions are made and the City finds out there are 
problems with the traffic flow, do we have recourse to go back and talk to them.  Moran advised it 
would be a Department of Transportation issue in the end since it is their highway and they are 
controlling the intersection and the light.  The Department of Transportation will reevaluate the 
light once the use is there.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer 
  NAYS:  None  
           
   The motion carried.   
 
15C-0088 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON DRAFTING A RESOLUTION FOR A 
PROPOSAL BY THE GALENA EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE DISTRICT TO ESTABLISH 
A SPECIAL SERVICE AREA FOR FUNDING AMBULANCE SERVICE 
 
Motion:  Painter moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve drafting a Resolution for a proposal 
by the Galena Emergency Medical Service District to establish a Special Service Area for funding 
ambulance service.   
 
Discussion:  If the County were to make a Special Service Area, the Ambulance Service could 
ask for anything from a .01 cents to .10 cents.  This amount could change annually.  The County 
Board approves the Special Service Area and it is up to the Ambulance Service to ask for the tax.   
 
The per capita amount the City currently pays would drop off once the Special Service Area is put 
in place.  The City has budgeted the per capita amount for the upcoming year.   
 
Painter feels it is clear they do not have the money to do the maintenance and capital 
improvements that they need to do.  She feels the ambulance service is a very important part of 
safety and being prepared.  It is important for them to keep their equipment up to date.   
 

Page 11 of 114



Regular Board Meeting  23 March 2015 

Lincoln stated while he doesn’t like to add taxes, this is one that might need to be done.  This 
would allow them to get some personnel and would allow them to educate the people making the 
calls.     
 
Fach stated he would hate to see them come in at .10 cents right off the bat but it looks like it can 
be engineered to what their needs are.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Painter, Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0090 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ACCEPTING UNIT PRICING FOR 
CROSSWALK, SIDEWALK AND CURB AND GUTTER PROJECTS 
 
 

 
 
Motion:  Greene moved, seconded by Kieffer, to reconsider item 15C-0090, accepting unit 
pricing for crosswalk, sidewalk and curb and gutter projects.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter  
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
Motion:  Greene moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve items 1-5 with Jackson Concrete and 
item 6 with Louie’s Trenching.   
 
Discussion:  Greene feels this is the right way to do it as they were low bid.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein  
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
15C-0112 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A TAXI BUSINESS LICENSE 
APPLICATION BY BASIL CONROY FOR ECO-TAXI LLC 
 
Motion:   Painter moved, seconded by Greene, to approve the application for a Taxi Business 
License by Basil Conroy for Eco-Taxi LLC.   
 
Discussion:  The applicant has met all requirements of the ordinance.    
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Fach 

Wienen Concreting Louie's Trenching Jackson Concrete
# Item Unit Quantity Unit Cost Quantity Unit Cost Quantity Unit Cost Quantity

1 Remove and replace sidewalk 5 inch thick SF 100 10.25 1025 10.5 1050 9 900

2

Remove and replace 5 inch thick exposed aggregate 

sidewalk SF 100 13 1300 13.5 1350 12 1200

3 Install sidewalk 5 inch thick  SF 50 9.5 475 9 450 8 400
4 Install curb and gutter, 24 inches wide, 6 inch high SF 50 29.5 1475 33 1650 26 1300
5 Remove and replace curb and gutter, 24 inches wide LF 50 34 1700 40 2000 32 1600

6

Remove and replace 7 inch thick crosswalk as indicated 

on attached drawing. Colored type B concrete. SF 250 62 15,500.00 28 7000 64 16000

Page 12 of 114



Regular Board Meeting  23 March 2015 

  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0113 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A TAXI BUSINESS LICENSE 
APPLICATION BY LORI SWALLEY FOR A TO B CAB COMPANY 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Painter, to approve the application for a Taxi Business 
License by Lori Swalley for A to B Cab Company.   
 
Discussion:  The applicant has met all requirements of the ordinance.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Renner 

 NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0114 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 
PROTECTION OF THE HEALTH, SAFETY, AND ECONOMIC WELL-BEING OF LOCAL 
CITIZENS FROM THE POTENTIAL IMPACT OF CRUDE OIL AND OTHER HIGHLY 
FLAMMABLE MATERIALS RAIL TRAFFIC 
 
Motion:  Painter moved, seconded by Greene, to approve a resolution supporting the protection 
of the health, safety, and economic well-being of local citizens from the potential impact of crude 
oil and other highly flammable materials rail traffic. 
 
Discussion:  Painter stated she would like to forward a copy of the resolution to surrounding 
communities recommending they adopt one as well.  She felt the resolution was very complete 
and encouraged all to read it.   
 
Fach noted nothing has been said about the speed limit.  He remembers 10 miles per hour being 
allowed through Galena.  He recommended asking them for a decrease in speed through the 
community.  Renner was in favor.   
 
Amended 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Kieffer, to amend the motion to include wording to ask the 
National Transportation Board for a reduction in speed through municipalities to 5 miles per hour.   
 
Amended 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Painter, Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
Main 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
 
15C-0115 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE RENEWAL OF THE 
AGREEMENT WITH THE GALENA AREA MEDICAL EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT 
FOR AMBULANCE SERVICE 
 

Page 13 of 114



Regular Board Meeting  23 March 2015 

Motion:  Greene moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the renewal of the agreement with the 
Galena Area Medical Emergency Services District for ambulance service, 15C-0115.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
15C-0116 – APPROVAL OF THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF ALDERPERSON TODD LINCOLN 
AS A NON-VOTING MEMBER OF THE VISITGALENA.ORG BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR 
THE TERM MAY 1, 2015-APRIL 30, 2017 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Painter, to approve the re-appointment of Alderperson Todd 
Lincoln as a non-voting member of the VisitGalena.org Board of Directors for the term May 1, 
2015-April 30, 2017.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Painter, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Lincoln 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
15C-0117 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Painter, to approve the Warrants as presented.     
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0118 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Thank you – Painter thanked Mr. Forsberg and Mr. Pariser for their comments regarding the 
budget.  Council will address their questions in the next work session.   
 
Alert System – Berstein stated it is her understanding the City has begun work on a system to 
alert citizens when there is a disaster.  She was pleased to hear that.  She feels members of the 
community will be happy to know we have a start on it.   
 
Rail Safety Resolution – Kieffer thanked Mark Moran for his work on the resolution for rail traffic 
going through Galena.   
 
Deer Signs – Fach would like to see more deer signs on the highway.   
 
15C-0119 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Diagonal Street – Repairs will need to be made to a void that has developed under Diagonal 
Street.  It is an old cellar that goes into the street.  The retaining wall has collapsed.  Staff is 
currently doing an emergency bid.   
 
 

Page 14 of 114



Regular Board Meeting  23 March 2015 

Meeker Street Walk Bridge – The concrete on the old walkway is deteriorating.  A small section 
will need to be replaced within the next year.   
 
Train Derailment – Staff has been engaging with BNSF working on assembling all of the costs 
associated with the recent derailment.  That will be submitted through the State EMS this Friday.  
We will be submitting for things such as personnel and equipment.  Staff will be meeting with 
them with regard to repair of infrastructure.   
 
Canadian National – Canadian National will be attending an upcoming City Council meeting to 
talk about what they are doing for rail safety.   
 
FOIA Request – Moran advised he has submitted a FOIA request to get copies of inspections of 
the rails from inside of town to five miles out.  To date he hasn’t received a reply.   
 
Budget Work Session – A budget work session has been scheduled for April 6, 2015.  Chief 
Huntington will be present to talk about the proposed software program.  This is a robust software 
system that does everything for all aspects of record keeping in the Police Department and is 
searchable.   
 
Turner Hall – Moran noted the large number in the Turner Hall five year plan is for the addition.  
The Committee has moved away from that idea.  The total cost for five years is $178,000.  The 
Committee and staff agree, the addition will be covered by other grants and private donations.   
 
Comments – Moran welcomes any public.  The agendas are added to the website as well as a 
public notice was published in the Galena Gazette attempting to get people here.  He appreciates 
the input given.   
 
15C-0120 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner thanked Mark Moran for his work on the resolution for train safety.   
 
Income Tax Cuts – Mayor Renner stated as we all know the new governor wants to slash the 
income tax distribution by 50 percent.  If that goes through the equivalent would be a loss of 
$170,000.  We currently have five things in the works to make up that $170,000 in the budget.  
They are:  new police software, tractor, freeze hiring of an officer, freeze non-union wages and 
look at increasing the food and beverage taxes.  A work session is scheduled for April 6, 2015.   
 
15C-0121 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Lincoln to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
      
The meeting adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 15 of 114



Special Board Meeting     06 April 2015 
 

1 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 6 APRIL 2015 
 
15C-B008 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Terry Renner called the special meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 
101 Green Street on 06 April 2015.   
 
15C-B009 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, 
Renner 
 
Absent:  Fach 
 
15C-B010 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
15C-B011 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.   
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
15C-B012 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ABATING CERTAIN TAXES 
HERETOFORE LEVIED BY THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS FOR THE 2010 SEWER 
BONDS 
 
Motion:  Greene moved, seconded by Painter, to approve the first reading and waive the second 
reading of an ordinance abating certain taxes heretofore levied by the City of Galena, Illinois for 
the 2010 Sewer Bonds.     
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call: AYES: Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Renner 
 NAYS: None 
 ABSENT:  Fach 
            
 The motion carried. 
 
15C-B013 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ABATING CERTAIN TAXES 
HERETOFORE LEVIED BY THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS FOR THE 2012A BONDS 
 
Motion:  Painter moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the first reading and waive the 
second reading of an ordinance abating certain taxes heretofore levied by the City of Galena, 
Illinois for the 2012A Bonds.     
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call: AYES: Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Renner 
 NAYS: None 
 ABSENT:  Fach 
            
 The motion carried. 
 
15C-B014 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ABATING CERTAIN TAXES 
HERETOFORE LEVIED BY THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS FOR THE 2012B BONDS 
 

Page 16 of 114



Special Board Meeting     06 April 2015 
 

2 

Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the first reading and waive the 
second reading of an ordinance abating certain taxes heretofore levied by the City of Galena, 
Illinois for the 2012B Bonds.       
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call: AYES: Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Greene, Renner 
 NAYS: None 
 ABSENT:  Fach 
            
 The motion carried. 
 
15C-B015 – REVIEW OF PROPOSED FY 2015-16 OPERATING BUDGET 
 
Mark Moran gave an overview of the following:  Budget Goals, Budget Summary, Projected Fund 
Balances, State Budget Cuts and Solutions and Budget Cuts. 
 
With the possible LGDF Cut, Moran proposed an incremental approach to addressing potential 
possible revenue cuts in the General Fund: 
 
Tier 1:  Update Revenues 
 
General Fund Revenues 

Food and Beverage Tax $22,000 
Liquor Licenses $6,750 
Contractor Licenses $5,000 
Interest Income 

TOTAL REVENUES $33,750 
 
  

 
Tier 2:  Cut Expenses and Reallocated Expenses   
 
General Fund Expenses 

Administration Contingency ‐$1,500 
Transfer to Liability Fund ‐$12,465 
Reallocate Salaries to W/S Funds ‐$22,090 
Travel and Training ‐$4,600 
Police Custodial ‐$4,000 
Police Software ‐$900 
Police Bldg. Maintenance ‐$6,000 
Parade Barricades ‐$5,000 
Engineer Consulting ‐$2,000 
Engineering GIS ‐$1,500 

TOTAL EXPENSES ‐$60,055 
 
Tier 3:  Cut Expenses 
 
General Fund Expenses 

Facility Manager Full‐Time ‐$28,000

TOTAL EXPENSES ‐$28,000

 

Page 17 of 114



Special Board Meeting     06 April 2015 
 

3 

Painter questioned if this would approve the Facilities Manager position with the possibility of it 
being taken away.  Moran stated it would be his recommendation to delay action on making the 
position full time until we know the outcome.  The budget does approve wage increases, the 
Police Department software and a new officer.   
 
Painter questioned if the tractor we currently have leased for the coming year would meet the 
capabilities for the Public Works Department.  Jim Rigdon, Public Director, advised we currently 
have a leased tractor with East Galena Township.  It has the capabilities, however, John Deere 
plans to eliminate the lease option.  The current existing tractor is not capable of operating the 
mower.  The tractor being proposed would cover for the following years when we can no longer 
lease.  Rigdon stated along with the new tractor he was hoping for a new mower with a longer 
reach and larger cutting area.  Painter questioned if the purchase were delayed until August, 
would it still be helpful.  Rigdon stated they could make it work.  They would also put a push blade 
on it in the winter time for snow removal.  Rigdon prefers a delayed purchase this year vs. waiting 
another whole year.   
 
Rigdon advised the City has an Intergovernmental Agreement with East Galena Township to 
share equipment.  The pull mower is owned by East Galena Township.   
 
Rigdon advised the new tractor would allow them to flip the mower on and off, put a boom mower 
on and use it in the winter time for a push blade.  It also comes with a more operable bucket 
loader.  It would have multiple uses.  They could also use it on the bike trail with a drag to blade 
the bike trail.    
 
Greene feels it would be better to get it in early spring vs. late summer as you would lose most of 
the mowing season.   
 
Painter questioned if it would be possible to buy some of the parade barricades?  She would also 
like to see more picnic tables for Recreation Park.   
 
Bernstein questioned what the City’s contributions cover for the 4th of July and the Halloween 
Parade.  Moran advised the Chamber of Commerce works to break even on those events.  The 
money is put towards porta-potties, marketing and the fireworks.  The chamber submits a budget 
each year to the city.   
 
A pending items is the Turner Hall revised six year plan.  The Galena Foundation will give 
$50,000 for the coming year.  This will bring the building up to a nice weather tight building.  One 
of the immediate projects is to update the lighting system.   
 
Also pending are funds to do work at the children’s pool in the fall as well as repairs to the main 
vessel.  We have recently purchased a new cleaner for the large pool vessel.   
 
The budget does not including anything for the ARC or the museum at this point.  Lincoln stated 
he would like to see some money allocated for the ARC if the state doesn’t do the cuts.  Bernstein 
stated she would like to receive the financial information for the ARC.   
 
15C-B016 – REVIEW OF BUDGET PROCESS SCHEDULE 
 
April 13, 2015 – Possible final approval of budget at regular City Council Meeting.   
April 27, 2015 – Last regular meeting to approve the budget.   
 
15C-B017 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Greene moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call: AYES: Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Renner 

Page 18 of 114



Special Board Meeting     06 April 2015 
 

4 

 NAYS: None 
 ABSENT:  Fach 
            
 The motion carried. 
                       
The meeting adjourned at 5:48 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 19 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 9, 2015 

RE:    Janitorial Services Agreement for Turner Hall and Public Works   
 
 
Last winter, we entered into agreements for janitorial services at Turner Hall and the 
Public Works building with Jeremy White and White Construction, Inc.  The contracts are 
now up for renewal.  I am writing to propose the renewal of both contracts for a second 
year.   
 
I would characterize the service from Jeremy White as very thorough, dependable, and 
responsive.  He has offered to continue with the same scope for the same fees.  The fees 
are listed in Table 1 below. 
 

 Table 1.  Janitorial Contract Amounts 
 

 
 
  

 
 
I am attaching the proposed agreements to extend the contracts with Jeremy White and 
White Construction, Inc. through April 30, 2016.    

 

Facility  Jeremy White 
Fees Per Month 

Turner Hall Building  $350 

Public Works Building  $110 

 

Page 20 of 114



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR MAINTENANCE WORKER 
 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA  AND  WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO. INC. FOR TURNER HALL 
 
 

  This agreement, made and entered into this 14th day of April, 2015, by and between Jeremy 
White, DBA White Construction Co. Inc., an independent contractor, hereinafter referred to as 
(“Maintenance Worker”), and the City of Galena, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred 
to as (“City”). 
 
  The parties have entered into an independent contractor agreement in writing where 
Maintenance Worker agrees to provide maintenance services to City in the maintenance of certain 
property, facilities and equipment, reference to which this agreement is made and by reference made a 
part of this agreement. 
 
  In consideration of premises and the promises contained and the payments as provided to be 
made, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1.  City agrees to engage the services of Maintenance Worker in City’s 
Janitorial/Maintenance Department, in the City of Galena, and agrees to pay 
Maintenance Worker for services and materials at the rate of Three Hundred and Fifty 
Dollars ($350.00) per month.  The above‐stated rate is to continue in force and effect for 
the period commencing on the date first above written and concluding April 30, 2016. 

 
2.  Maintenance Worker shall provide janitorial services for the City.  Said services shall 

involve the maintenance and cleaning of Turner Hall.  Maintenance Worker shall clean 
and also perform minor maintenance.  Said cleaning and maintenance shall include, but 
is not limited to dusting, sweeping, mopping, scrubbing and collecting and depositing 
refuse in all restrooms, rooms, kitchen, main hall, hallways and furniture, etc.  It is 
understood that the use of the Turner Hall complex may, from time‐to‐time, require 
extraordinary hours of work.  Any such extraordinary hours, and the compensation for 
same, have been accounted for by the parties in the compensation terms described in 
paragraph one hereof.  Maintenance Worker shall clean Turner Hall once a week, before 
and after each performance or occupancy and as necessary during long running 
performances and occupancies.   

 
3.  The City shall provide all cleaning materials required.  The City shall provide all paper 

products such as hand towels, toilet paper and trash can plastic liners.  Maintenance 
Worker shall inform the City when such supplies need to be replenished.  Maintenance 
Worker shall also inform City of any equipment malfunctions or problems relating to the 
building’s structures, facilities, utility systems, fixtures, tables, chairs, etc. 

 
4.  Maintenance worker must be physically and mentally capable of performing all duties 

and tasks necessary to satisfactorily render janitorial maintenance services. 
 

5.  It is further agreed that this agreement may be renewed upon the same terms and 
conditions, subject to mutual agreement by the parties. 

   

Page 21 of 114



 

  

2

6.  Maintenance worker agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend City, its officers, 
employees, agents and servants, from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, 
actions or suits of whatsoever character or kind, arising or resulting or in any way 
connected with maintenance worker’s performance of this Agreement, the operations 
of the maintenance worker or the failure of the maintenance worker to comply with the 
provisions and requirements of all applicable permits, licenses, laws or regulations. 

 
7.    In the event maintenance worker hires any employees, agents or servants to assist 

maintenance worker in the performance of this Agreement, then maintenance worker 
shall be required to provide worker’s compensation insurance coverage on behalf of 
said party or parties and agrees to name the City as an additional insured on said policy.  
Said worker’s compensation insurance shall be for the purpose of insuring both 
maintenance worker and the City against any worker’s compensation liability or similar 
claim that may be made pursuant to acts arising out of the performance of this 
Agreement.  A copy of said worker’s compensation insurance coverage shall be provided 
to the City in such event. 

 
8.  Maintenance Worker shall at all times be an independent contractor under this 

agreement, rather than a covenantor, agent, employee, or representative of the City, 
and no act, action, or omission to act by Maintenance Worker, or any of her principals, 
officers, directors, employees, or agents, shall in any way obligate or be binding upon 
the City or its officials.  Maintenance Worker covenants and agrees that he shall not 
represent to any third party that he or any of his principals, officers, directors, 
employees, or agents are officials, agents, employees, or representatives of the City. 

 
    Accordingly, Maintenance Worker’s status as independent contractor shall require that: 
 

a)  City controls only the result to be achieved by the work of Maintenance Worker 
but not the means by which such work is accomplished; 

 
b)  Maintenance Worker’s only compensation shall be “profit” (or contract 

payments) and not “wages”, and from which such payments no withholding will 
be made; 

 
c)  Maintenance Worker shall not work exclusively (within any twelve (12) month 

period) for City; 
 

d)  Maintenance Worker shall not be entitled to vacation, health, sick leave, 
pension, or any other “employee” type benefits. 

 
9.  Maintenance Worker affirmatively states that he/she is a sole proprietor or a business 

that shall remain an equal opportunity employer which does not discriminate in its 
employment practices or in the award of contracts and as such does not discriminate 
based on race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, national 
origin,  age,  disability,  genetic  information,  veteran,   or  marital  status,  in  
accordance  with applicable federal, state and local laws. 

 

Page 22 of 114



 

  

3

10.  Maintenance Worker agrees and promises to comply with all applicable ordinances, 
statutes and regulations, including but not limited to the equal employment and 
affirmative  action  provisions  pertaining to  public  contracts  by Section  2‐105  of  the  
Illinois Human Rights Act (Codified as paragraph 2‐105 of Chapter 775 of the Illinois 
Compiled Statutes as amended). 

 
11.  This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice by either party. 
 
12.  It is further agreed that this agreement may be renewed upon the same terms and 

conditions, subject to mutual agreement by the parties. 
 
13.  This agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 
 

14.  This document shall contain the entirety of the agreement between the parties 
concerning the subject matter thereof, and shall not be modified except in a writing 
signed by both parties. 

 
  In the use of the agreement the term “he” shall mean male, female, neutral gender and plural or 
singular as the context may require. 
             

CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS, 
            A municipal corporation, 
 
 
 
          BY:    ____________________________________ 
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 
             MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
            ___________________________________ 
                     MAINTENANCE WORKER 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 

Page 23 of 114



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES 
 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO. INC. FOR  
 

THE PUBLIC WORKS BUILDING       
 
 

  This agreement, made and entered into this _____ day of _________________, 2015, by and 
between Jeremy White, DBA White Construction Co. Inc. an independent contractor, hereinafter 
referred to as (“Contractor”), and the City of Galena, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as (“City”). 
 
  The parties have entered into an independent contractor agreement in writing where Contractor 
agrees to provide janitorial services to City in the maintenance of certain property, facilities and 
equipment, reference to which this agreement is made and by reference made a part of this agreement. 
 
  In consideration of premises and the promises contained and the payments as provided to be 
made, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1.  City agrees to engage the services of Contractor and agrees to pay Contractor for 
services at the rate of One‐Hundred and Ten Dollars ($110.00) per month.  The above‐
stated rate is to continue in force and effect for the period commencing on the date first 
above written and concluding April 30, 2016. 

 
2.  Contractor shall provide janitorial services for the City.  Said services shall involve the 

cleaning of the City of Galena Public Works Building. 
 
3.  Contractor shall clean each facility once weekly in accordance with the Public Works 

Janitorial Contractor Checklist attached hereto and made part hereof.   
 
4.    Cleaning shall include shall include, but is not limited to dusting, sweeping, mopping, 

scrubbing, polishing, vacuuming and collecting and depositing refuse and recyclables in 
all areas of the buildings, including restrooms, office, break room, and hallways.  It is 
understood that there may be special occasions when cleaning outside of the schedule 
is required.   Any such extraordinary hours, and the compensation for same, have been 
accounted for by the parties in the compensation terms described in paragraph one 
hereof.   

 
5.  The City shall provide all cleaning agents, equipment, materials, and tools required.  The 

City shall provide all paper products such as hand towels, toilet paper and trash can 
liners.  Contractor shall inform the City when such supplies need to be replenished.  
Contractor shall also inform City of any equipment malfunctions or problems or 
damages relating to the buildings, facilities, utility systems, fixtures, tables, chairs, etc. 

 
6.  Contractor must be physically and mentally capable of performing all duties and tasks 

necessary to satisfactorily render janitorial maintenance services. 
 

Page 24 of 114



Page 2 of 3 

 

7.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City, its officers, 
employees, agents and servants, from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, 
actions or suits of whatsoever character or kind, arising or resulting or in any way 
connected with Contractor’s performance of this Agreement, the operations of the 
Contractor or the failure of the Contractor to comply with the provisions and 
requirements of all applicable permits, licenses, laws or regulations. 

 
8.    In the event the Contractor hires any employees, agents or servants to assist the 

Contractor in the performance of this Agreement, then the Contractor shall be required 
to provide worker’s compensation insurance coverage on behalf of said party or parties 
and agrees to name the City as an additional insured on said policy.  Said worker’s 
compensation insurance shall be for the purpose of insuring both the Contractor and the 
City against any worker’s compensation liability or similar claim that may be made 
pursuant to acts arising out of the performance of this Agreement.  A copy of said 
worker’s compensation insurance coverage shall be provided to the City in such event. 

 
9.  Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor under this agreement, rather 

than a covenantor, agent, employee, or representative of the City, and no act, action, or 
omission to act by the Contractor, or any of her principals, officers, directors, 
employees, or agents, shall in any way obligate or be binding upon the City or its 
officials.  Contractor covenants and agrees that he shall not represent to any third party 
that she or any of her principals, officers, directors, employees, or agents are officials, 
agents, employees, or representatives of the City. 

 
    Accordingly, Contractor’s status as independent contractor shall require that: 
 

a)  City controls only the result to be achieved by the work of the Contractor but 
not the means by which such work is accomplished; 

 
b)  Contractor’s only compensation shall be “profit” (or contract payments) and not 

“wages”, and from which such payments no withholding will be made; 
 

c)  Contractor shall not work exclusively (within any twelve (12) month period) for 
City; 

 
d)  Contractor shall not be entitled to vacation, health, sick leave, pension, or any 

other “employee” type benefits. 
 

10.  Contractor affirmatively states that he/she is a sole proprietor or a business that shall 
remain an equal opportunity employer which does not discriminate in its employment 
practices or in the award of contracts and as such does not discriminate based on race, 
color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin,  age,  
disability,  genetic  information,  veteran,   or  marital  status,  in  accordance  with 
applicable federal, state and local laws. 

 
11.  Contractor agrees and promises to comply with all applicable ordinances, statutes and 

regulations, including but not limited to the equal employment and affirmative  action  
provisions  pertaining to  public  contracts  by Section  2‐105  of  the  Illinois Human 

Page 25 of 114



Page 3 of 3 

 

Rights Act (Codified as paragraph 2‐105 of Chapter 775 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 
as amended). 

 
12.  This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice by either party. 
 
13.  It is further agreed that this agreement may be renewed upon the same terms and 

conditions, subject to mutual agreement by the parties. 
 
14.  This agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 
 

15.  This document shall contain the entirety of the agreement between the parties 
concerning the subject matter thereof, and shall not be modified except in a writing 
signed by both parties. 

 
  In the use of the agreement the term “he” shall mean male, female, neutral gender and plural or 
singular as the context may require. 
             

CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS, 
            A municipal corporation, 
 
 
          BY:    ____________________________________ 
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 
             MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
            ___________________________________ 
            CONTRACTOR 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 

Page 26 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
  
 

To: Mayor & Council 

From: Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Date: 04/08/15 

Re: Tour Operator’s License 

The following businesses have returned applications for a Trolley Service License for 2015/2016: 
  
 River Trails Transit Lines, Inc. – dba Tri-State Travel 
 Brill’s Trolley Tours – dba Galena Trolley Tours & Depot Theater 
 Amelia’s Galena Ghost Tours, Inc. 
 
The following business has returned an application for a Horse Drawn Carriage Business License for 2015/2016: 
  

Galena Carriage Company 
 
The following persons have returned an application for a Tour Guide Business for 2014/2015: 
 
 Richard T. Mulcahey, Meet Galena Tours 
 Galena Jo Daviess County Historical Society 
 Steve Repp, Old Fashioned Tours of Galena 
 
All applications are available at City Hall for inspection.   
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 27 of 114



Page 28 of 114



Page 29 of 114



Page 30 of 114



Page 31 of 114



Page 32 of 114



Page 33 of 114



Page 34 of 114



Page 35 of 114



Page 36 of 114



Page 37 of 114



Page 38 of 114



Page 39 of 114



Page 40 of 114



Page 41 of 114



Page 42 of 114



Page 43 of 114



Page 44 of 114



Page 45 of 114



Page 46 of 114



Page 47 of 114



 
RESOLUTION NO. R15‐   

 
A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING AND AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF A SPECIAL SERVICE AREA 

WITHIN THE CITY OF GALENA FOR AMBULANCE SERVICE 

 
WHEREAS the City of Galena (hereinafter “City”), a municipal corporation of the State of 

Illinois and Jo Daviess County (hereinafter “County”), a duly constituted public agency of the 
State of Illinois, hereby resolves to create a special service area known as Special Service Area 
Number Six, within the City limits of Galena, Illinois, and other property located within Jo 
Daviess County, see “Exhibit A” attached hereto, legal description of all property that 
constitutes the Special Service Area Number Six. 

 
WHEREAS the County, as a public agency of the State of Illinois is authorized and 

empowered by the constitution of the State of Illinois, pursuant to Section 7 (6) of Article VII of 
the Constitution of the State of Illinois and Article 27 of 35 ILCS 200 et. al. of the Illinois 
Property Tax Code, authorize the establishment of Special Service Areas in order to provide 
governmental services to certain areas within the County and authorize the imposition of a tax 
to pay for the providing of such special services and the debt incurred therewith; 

 
WHEREAS it is hereby resolved that the City supports and authorizes the creation of a 

special service area within the City limits of Galena, Illinois.  It is understood that the special 
service area may include additional properties outside of the City of Galena, more particularly 
described in “Exhibit A”; 

 
WHEREAS it is hereby resolved that the County is authorized to impose a tax in an 

amount between $0.01 and $0.10 per $100.00 of assessed value to be levied upon on real 
estate and taxable property within the Special Service Area Number Six.  That said tax shall be 
in addition to any other annual tax presently levied by any taxing district within said Special 
Service Area Number Six; 

 
WHEREAS it is hereby resolved that the City deems it essential and necessary to provide 

emergency medical services to its citizens, and that the establishment of a special service area 
is the most economical and practical way of providing said services; 

 
NOW, therefore, be it resolved by the City of Galena as follows: 

1. This Resolution shall be known as, and may hereafter be referred to as, the 
Resolution Authorizing the Creation of a Special Service Area known as Special 
Service Area Number Six. 
 

2. That the Resolution authorizes the execution of any and all documents necessary in 
order to enforce and create said special service area known as Special Service Area 
Number Six. 

Page 48 of 114



 

3. That the Resolution authorizes the County to impose a tax on real estate and taxable 
property in an amount between $0.01 and $0.10 of $100.00 of assessed value in 
order to fund the special service area. 
 

4. Savings Clause.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall 
be held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the provisions of this 
Resolution. 
 

5. Effective Date.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

Passed this      day of      , 2015. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

Abstain: 

Approved this     day of      , 2015. 

 

                         
          Terry Renner, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
           
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

 
 

 

Page 49 of 114



Page 50 of 114



 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator 

FROM: Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  April 8, 2015 

RE: Change Order #3 for Training Simulator Structure at Galena Fire Department 
Training Center 

 
 
This proposed change order includes miscellaneous items that were completed late last fall 
as well as an estimated increase in quantity for hot mix asphalt to accommodate the 
pavement of the cul-de-sac, which was not included yet in the previous change order. 
 
Brief descriptions are included in the Change Order Summary, attached, and some 
additional comments follow: 
 
- The floor level of the structure was elevated higher than the existing grade due to the 

poor soil conditions.  We made the decision to fill in around it instead of incurring 
more cost to dig deeper into the poor soils and fill with extra rock anyway.  This 
decision resulted in the necessity to fill in the voids with more CA-11 concrete stone 
and additional CA-10 aggregate base.  These increases are found in Bid Items #8 & 
WCD5b (noted as WCD-6k). 

- Another modification needed, due to the elevation of the foundation, was to install 
concrete piers and an elevated stoop underneath the exterior balcony stairs.  (WCD-6b) 

- An adjustment was needed for the quantities for the driveway curb cut and the curb and 
gutter.  75 feet was reduced from the curb and gutter item and the driveway entrance 
item was increased to total 75 feet. (WCD’s 6d & 6e) 

- The power supply wire was upgraded to #8 & 10 from #12 in the original bid to 
accommodate the exhaust fan and electrical box, along with an addition of 100 feet of 
conduit to the original quantity. (WCD’s 6f, 6g & 6i) 

- Additional design engineering was required that supplemented the previous change 
order.  This included sub-base modifications to the design including the pipe 
underdrain system.  Centerline realignment and a redesign of access intersection fillets 
were made to accommodate the aerial truck’s larger turning radius. 

- An additional 20 feet was needed for the fence around the retention pond to leave 
enough freeboard when the pond is near capacity. 

- Concrete testing was conducted to ensure concrete strengths were adequate for the 
different mixtures over certain time periods. 

 
 
 

Page 51 of 114



As a reference, the original approved budget and Engineer’s estimate for the project was at 
$750,000.00, which did not include the cul-de-sac.  The concept for the auto extrication 
pad, which the cul-de-sac replaced, was estimated to cost approximately $50,000-$60,000.   
 
The original base bid from the Contractor was $612,733.50.  We added $23,000 in Change 
Order #1 and $132,962.05 in Change Order #2.  This Change Order #3 will bring us to 
$799,669.78 for contract price. 
 
I will be available before and during the Council meeting to answer any questions that you 
have regarding the project.  
 

 
 
 

 

Page 52 of 114



CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY 
 
Number:       #3           Date of Issuance: 8 April 2015  
 
Project:  Training Simulator Structure at Galena Fire Department Training Center 
 
OWNER:     City of Galena 
 
ADDRESS:   11525 Technical Drive, Galena, IL  61036 
 
CONTRACTOR: M&N Sproule Construction, Inc. 
  11471 Industrial Park, Galena, IL 61036 
 

ENGINEER/ARCHITECT:          WHP Training Towers / Greg Stauder & Co. 
   
 
You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents:   
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE ORDER:   
Ref # - Bid & Work Change Directive Change Order Reference Number 

Ref.# Work Item Justification Cost $ 
WCD-6a Bid Item 4 – Materials & Labor 

(Prevailing Wage) including apron 
surrounding structure 

Added small landing area and 
surround to the apron sidewalk at the 
bottom of the stairs, including piers 

$2,396.40 

WCD-6b Bid Item 8 - Install aggregate base at 
10 inch depth (CA-10) 

Additional quantities were needed to 
bring the road to grade and to fill in 
around the structure (144.27 tons), 
also adding 25 extra tons for expected 
finishing 

$2,285.15 

WCD-6c Bid Item 10 – Remove and replace 
curb and gutter, 24 inches wide at 
Technical Drive entrance 

Adjust quantity to 75 feet from 30 
feet to accommodate aerial fire truck 
turning radius 

$1,080.00 

WCD-6d Bid Item 11 – Install curb and 
gutter, 24 inches wide around island 
in loop and outer side of loop 

Reduce this item by 75 feet as the 
entrance quantity was included with 
this item on the previous change 
order 

($1,650.00) 

WCD-6e Bid Item 3 - Design Engineering – 
Additional Work 

Design sub-base modifications for 
drive, centerline realignment, 
coordination with geotechnical 
consultant, design of pipe underdrain 
system, re-design on intersection 
fillets to accommodate the aerial 

$4,000.00 

WCD-6f Bid Item 25 – Conduit, 1-1/2 inch  Add 100 feet to overall length $600.00 
WCD-6g Bid Item 26 – Wire, #12 (3-strand 

UF) 
Change to 500 feet of #10 wire at 
$5.34 per foot; and 200 feet of #8 
wire at $5.60 per foot 

$1,290.00 

Page 53 of 114



WCD-6h Bid Item 29 – Fence around 
Retention Pond – Black aluminum 
fence 6 feet high 

Add 20 feet to overall length $1,100.00 

WCD-6i Electrical Box Add electrical box on the side of the 
building 

$120.00 

WCD-6j Concrete Testing Cost and administration of concrete 
strength lab testing 

$1,400.00 

WCD-6k WCD5b – Sub-base stabilization – 
CA-11 Concrete Stone 

Add 226.26 tons to adjust for building 
elevation due to soils to fill 
foundation 

$4,072.68 
 

WCD-7 Item 9 – HMA paving 4 inch depth, 
two lifts 

Add 140 tons to accommodate for 
cul-de-sac 

$14,280.00 

 TOTAL:   $30,974.23 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Refer to work change directives and engineer’s change orders 
 
CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:        
 
Original Contract price, including alternates 1-6     $612,733.50 
 
Net Change of previous Change Orders 1-2   ADD  $155,962.05 
        
Revised Contract price with previous change orders    $768,695.55 
 
Net Change of this Change Order    ADD  $  30,974.23 
 
Contract price with all approved Change Orders     $799,669.78  
                  
CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME: 
 
Original Contract Substantial Completion Date     21 November 2014 
 
Contract Completion Date Adjustment previous Change Orders   28 days 
 
Contract Completion Date Adjustment this Change Order   23 weeks 
 
Adjusted Contract Substantial Completion Date including Change Orders            29 May 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54 of 114



Recommended by: 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
ENGINEER     Date 
 
Approved by: 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
OWNER     Date 
 
Approved by: 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
CONTRACTOR     Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55 of 114



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator 

FROM: Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  9 April 2015 

RE: Galena Fire Department Training Center - Barn 
 Selection of Architect / Engineer Consultant 
 
 
City staff has conducted preliminary conceptual design requirements for improvements on the 
existing barn at the Galena Fire Department Training Center.  The barn will be modified to 
accommodate the fire department’s equipment that is presently stored at the old wastewater 
treatment plant.  Improvements will include adding garage doors to create parking bays, structural 
adjustments to accommodate the new doors, lining and insulating the interior, a storage area for 
straw bales & pallets, water and power connections and painting.  We are now at the stage that 
requires a consultant to design and refine the project scope to generate construction specifications 
for project bidding. 
 
I recommend we use an architect consultant to complete the design plans and construction 
specifications.  A design and engineering proposal was obtained from Adam Johnson to complete 
the necessary work for a sum of $5,000 to include preliminary and final design, structural 
engineering from Todd Birkel, S.E., cost estimating, construction plans and specifications.  We 
have had a good working relationship with Adam Johnson and Todd Birkel in the past and 
recommend approval of their proposal so we can complete the design and commence construction 
work early this summer.  City Staff will handle the bidding process, observation, supervision and 
will apply for any necessary permits. 
 
I recommend the city council approves a contract with Adam Johnson to complete architectural / 
engineering design services for the Galena Fire Department Training Center Barn not to exceed 
the sum of $5,000. 

Page 56 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 9, 2015 

RE:    Train Derailment Cost Recovery     
 
 
Following the March 5 Burlington Northern Sante Fe (BNSF) train derailment south of 
Galena, the BNSF offered to consider claims for the recovery of costs and damages 
resulting from the incident.  Our employees and fire department volunteers have been 
carefully documenting personnel time, equipment time, and material costs from the time 
we were called to action on March 5.  I am writing to present the cost summaries and to 
request council authorization to submit the claims to the BNSF.  
 
The Galena Fire Department was the command agency for the incident response.  The 
BNSF suggested that as the incident commander the Galena Fire Department submit the 
costs for the other 12 responding mutual aid agencies.  In addition to the mutual aid 
agency costs, the total costs are divided into three categories: Galena Fire Department 
personnel and equipment costs, City of Galena non‐fire department personnel costs, and 
City of Galena non‐fire department equipment costs.  A summary of the costs is shown in 
Table 1 below and more detailed summaries are attached.  
 

Table 1.  Train Derailment Cost Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Under the State of Illinois Fire Protection District Act, fire protection districts like the City 
of Galena Fire Department are authorized to charge for services rendered to persons who 
are not residents of the district at a rate not to exceed $70 per hour per firefighter and 
$250 per hour per vehicle.  Additional charges may be levied for reimbursement of 
expenses for materials.  The act requires the revenue from the charges to be deposited in 

Item  Cost 

Mutual Aid Departments  $101,570.00

 

Galena Fire Department  $215,136.12 

Non‐Fire Personnel  $5,225.00

Non‐Fire Equipment   $6,948.78 

TOTAL CITY COST $227,309.90

 

Page 57 of 114



2 of 2 

the general fund of the fire protection district.  In our case, the funds would be deposited 
in the Fire Fund (Fund 22) of the City of Galena.    
 
Given the extraordinary magnitude of the incident, the risk to our fire personnel, and the 
disruption to their lives and, in some cases, to their regular jobs, I suggest the council 
strongly consider compensating the fire department employees with any claim revenue 
received for fire personnel hours.  Thirty‐two of our firefighters worked a total of 911.75 
hours between March 5 and March 13.  At the rate of $70 per hour, the total 
compensation for the group would be $63,822.50.  Each firefighter would be paid for his 
or her actual hours worked and recorded.  (A separate form has been completed 
documenting every shift worked by any firefighter or city employee.)  The remainder of 
any Fire Department related claim revenue would be available for any current or future 
budgeted expense in the Fire Fund.  
 
In addition to the claims listed in Table 1, the City would reserve the right for additional 
claims for damages to our infrastructure, including: the Galena River Trail, Depot Park, 
and streets.  BNSF has asked for us to work on the infrastructure claim separately and 
after the recovery and restoration process has concluded at the derailment site.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you.  
 
  
 
 
  
 
  
 
 

  
 

Page 58 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS
BNSF Train Derailment Cost Recovery: Personnel Costs  

Total

Straight Time/ Personnel

Department Personnel Position Job Code Activity Date Hours Rate Overtime Cost

Police

Halstead, Devin Police Officer SE Security at command entry 3/5/15 6.0 50.00$      1.0 300.00$       

Johnson, Nathan Police Officer SE Security at command entry 3/6/15 2.0 50.00$      1.0 100.00$       

Salzmann, William Police Lieutenant CS Procure supplies for command post 3/6/15 0.5 50.00$      1.0 25.00$         

Salzmann, William Police Lieutenant CS Procure barricades for command parking lot 3/6/15 0.5 50.00$      1.0 25.00$         

Salzmann, William Police Lieutenant SE Patrol bike trail for trespassers 3/6/15 0.3 50.00$      1.0 16.67$         

Brandel, Keith Police Officer CS Procure salt for ice at command post 3/6/15 0.4 50.00$      1.0 20.83$         

Brandel, Keith Police Officer CS Procure supplies for command post 3/7/15 0.3 50.00$      1.0 12.50$         

Brandel, Keith Police Officer CS Procure/deliver signs for command lot 3/7/15 0.5 50.00$      1.0 25.00$         

525.00$       

Public Works 

Rigdon, Jim Supervisor IS Assist with setup of barricades 3/5/15 2.0 50.00$      1.0                          100.00$       

Bussan, Tim Operator IS Plow and salt, load and haul culvert pipe, assist with setup 3/5/15 10.0 50.00$      1.5                          750.00$       

Montgomery, Rusty Operator IS Plow and salt with spreader 3/5/15 2.0 50.00$      1.5                          150.00$       

Bussan, Tim Operator IS Plow and salt with spreader 3/6/15 2.0 50.00$      1.0                          100.00$       

Montgomery, Rusty Operator IS Salt, set out road signs 3/6/15 4.0 50.00$      1.5                          300.00$       

Bingham, Jason Asst. Supervisor IS Salt with spreader 3/6/15 2.0 50.00$      1.0                          100.00$       

Kuhn, Brian Operator IS Salt, set out barricades, thaw out five trucks 3/6/15 4.0 50.00$      1.0                          200.00$       

Montgomery, Rusty Operator IS Salt with spreader 3/7/15 2.0 50.00$      1.5                          150.00$       

Bingham, Jason Asst. Supervisor IS Salt with spreader 3/7/15 2.0 50.00$      1.5                          150.00$       

Montgomery, Rusty Operator IS Salt with spreader 3/8/15 2.0 50.00$      1.5                          150.00$       

Sinagra, Kevin Laborer W Fill water tanks for Midwest Drilling LLC/Dusty Schroeder 3/14/15 2.0 50.00$      1.5                          150.00$       

2,300.00$    

Administration

Mark Moran  City Administrator PIO Public Information Officer (PIO) at command post 3/5/15 9.0 60.00$      1.0 540.00$       

Mark Moran  City Administrator PIO PIO duties  3/6/15 10.0 60.00$      1.0 600.00$       

Mark Moran  City Administrator C Meeting with IL EMA at City Hall/PIO duties 3/7/15 3.0 60.00$      1.0 180.00$       

Mark Moran  City Administrator PIO Pio duties (respond to media) 3/8/15 0.5 60.00$      1.0 30.00$         

Mark Moran  City Administrator PIO Pio duties (respond to media) 3/9/15 4.0 60.00$      1.0 240.00$       

Mark Moran  City Administrator PIO Pio duties (respond to media) 3/10/15 1.0 60.00$      1.0 60.00$         

Mark Moran City Administrator C Attend County Board Committee meeting with BNSF/EPA 3/19/15 2.0 60.00$      1.0 120.00$       

Mark Moran City Administrator C Prepare cost recovery report 3/23/15 4.0 60.00$      1.0 240.00$       

Mark Moran City Administrator C Prepare cost recovery report 3/25/15 2.0 60.00$      1.0 120.00$       

Mark Moran City Administrator C Meeting with BNSF at County Building 3/25/15 1.0 60.00$      1.0 60.00$         

Mark Moran City Administrator C Meeting with contractor at Depot Lot re damage repair 3/26/15 0.5 60.00$      1.0 30.00$         

Mark Moran City Administrator PIO After Action Report Meeting at Fire Department 3/27/15 3.0 60.00$      1.0 180.00$       

2,400.00$    

5,225.00$    

Job Code Key

E = Engine/Pumper S/O =  Safety Officer P = Pick up Truck UCP = Command Post

IC = Incident Commander  C = Communications/Log ATV = 6‐Wheeler PIO = Public Information Officer

T = Tanker OPS = Operations Officer RA = Repair Apparatus SE = Security

R = Rescue ST = Staging S = Standby/Cleanup CS = Command Support

B = Brush Truck L = Logs W = Hydrant Fill IS = Incident Support

Police Total

Administration Total

TOTAL PERSONNEL COST

Public Works Total

Page 59 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS
BNSF Train Derailment Cost Recovery: Vehicle, Equipment, Other Costs  

Total

Department Item Job Code Location Date Hours Rate Fixed Cost Cost

Police

Police Squad SE Security at command entry‐Bouthillier Street 3/5/15 6.0 125.00$   750.00$        

Police Squad SE Security at command entry‐Bouthillier Street 3/6/15 2.0 125.00$   250.00$        

Police Squad CS Procure supplies for command post 3/6/15 0.5 125.00$   62.50$          

Police Squad CS Procure barricades for command parking lot 3/6/15 0.5 125.00$   62.50$          

Police Squad SE Patrol bike trail for trespassers 3/6/15 0.3 125.00$   41.67$          

Police Squad CS Procure salt for ice at command post 3/6/15 0.4 125.00$   52.08$          

Police Squad CS Procure supplies for command post 3/7/15 0.3 125.00$   31.25$          

Police Squad CS Procure/deliver signs for command lot 3/7/15 0.5 125.00$   62.50$          

1,312.50$     

Public Works

Pickup Truck CS Assist with setup of barricades 3/5/15 2.0 125.00$   250.00$        

1 Ton Truck CS Plow and salt, load and haul culvert pipe, assist with setup 3/5/15 10.0 125.00$   1,250.00$     

1 Ton Truck CS Plow and salt with spreader 3/5/15 2.0 125.00$   250.00$        

1 Ton Truck CS Plow and salt with spreader 3/6/15 2.0 125.00$   250.00$        

1 Ton Truck CS Salt, set out road signs 3/6/15 4.0 125.00$   500.00$        

1 Ton Truck CS Salt with spreader 3/6/15 2.0 125.00$   250.00$        

1 Ton Truck CS Salt, set out barricades, thaw out five trucks 3/6/15 4.0 125.00$   500.00$        

1 Ton Truck CS Salt with spreader 3/7/15 2.0 125.00$   250.00$        

1 Ton Truck CS Salt with spreader 3/7/15 2.0 125.00$   250.00$        

1 Ton Truck CS Salt with spreader 3/8/15 2.0 125.00$   250.00$        

Fill water tanks for Midwest Drilling LLC/Dusty Schroeder 3/14/15   50.00$               50.00$          

Road salt (4 ton) 3/5‐8/15 87.85$     351.40$        

60 feet 20" culvert pipe 3/5/15 12.50$     750.00$        

22 feet 22" culvert pipe 3/5/15 13.00$     286.00$        

5,437.40$     

Administration

Mark Moran  Food and drink for press conference  3/6/15   $48.88 $48.88

Mark Moran  City Hall carpet cleaning after BNSF employees tracked mud 3/6/15   $150.00 $150.00

198.88$        

6,948.78$      

Job Code Key

E = Engine/Pumper S/O =  Safety Officer P = Pick up Truck

IC = Incident Commander  C = Communications/Log ATV = 6‐Wheeler

T = Tanker OPS = Operations Officer RA = Repair Apparatus

R = Rescue ST = Staging S = Standby/Cleanup

B = Brush Truck L = Logs W = Hydrant Fill

UCP = Command Post PIO = Public Information Officer SE = Security

CS = Command Support IS = Incident Support

TOTAL VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT/OTHER COSTS

Police Total

Administration Total

Public Works Total

Page 60 of 114



Page 61 of 114



Page 62 of 114



Page 63 of 114



Page 64 of 114



Page 65 of 114



Page 66 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 9, 2015 

RE:    Pay and Display Machine   
 
 
As we discussed during the recent budget meetings, the parking payment machine in the 
Commerce Street parking lot stopped working at the of last fall.  The unit was purchased 
in 2002 and is now beyond repair.  I am writing to seek your approval to purchase a new 
machine.  
 
I am attaching the specifications and cost for a MacKay Guardian Multi Elite which has all 
of the functionality that we seek for ease of use by customers and our personnel.  The 
total cost for a single machine is $10,525.  The proposed Parking and Shuttle Fund budget 
contains $11,000 for the purchase.  I would expect the machine to pay for itself in the 
first year of operation as the Commerce Street parking lot generated $14,355 in revenue 
last year from May through December.   
 
With a 6‐8 week order period, I seek your approval to order the machine now and make 
payment in the coming fiscal year.     
 

 

Page 67 of 114



Electronic Security Solutions, Inc.
1225 Shiloh Blvd # 69

Zion, IL  60099
Ph. 262.694.6393 - Cell: 312.505.9494

Jim@esslockingsystems.com

Quotation prepared for: City of Galena Predpared by : Jim Sherwin

312 N Main St, Galena, IL 61036
(815) 777-2131 Quotation No. JS 7789494

Attn: Mary Beth Hyde Date: January 5, 2015

Part Number Description Quantity Unit Cost Total

72PD3000030 MacKay Guardian Multi Elite Card Recharge Station 2 $7,056.32 $14,112.64
40 Ah Battery 2 $186.39 $372.78

Modem (GPRS or CDMA, Sprint, ATT, Verizon Etc 2 $381.17 $762.34
Credit Card Board Module Assembly 2 $158.79 $317.58

P& D Card Reader with Bezel Assembly 2 $234.84 $469.68
USA Bill Acceptor, Down Stacker 2 $1,324.80 $2,649.60

Solar Charging 2 $754.10 $1,508.20
Inground Mounting bracket ( *Installed on Concrete Pad) 2 $150.00 $300.00
*Labor to install units on concrete foundation with bracket 2 $150.00 $300.00
* Labor to install on concrete foundation without bracket 2 $375.00 $750.00

Color:  Black Cabinet & Front Color Silver/Grey 2 Included $0.00
One (1) Roll Ticket stock 2 Included $0.00

High security Medeco locks for upper and lower doors Included $0.00
Color LCD Display 2 Included $0.00

Receipt printer 2 Included $0.00
1 year parts and labor warranty 2 Included $0.00

$10,771.41 $20,792.82

H99-GHN0001 Hosted Sentinel software services per/machine/per month 2 $40.00 $960.00
One year service (In Advance) Recurring yearly charge

Includes: Real Time Credit Card Processing
Third party hosted software reconciliations using Credit Call

WEB-MIS, Telemetry Data Plan through Client Carrier
GHN Services Set up of GHN Services 1 $295.00 $295.00

Shipping 2 $107.73 $215.46
Terms 30% down with order balance on Installation

* Concrete foundation to be provided by client Grand Total: $22,263.28
Labor cost reflects with and without inground bracket.

Page 68 of 114



www.mackaymeters.comwww.mackaymeters.com  

Illuminated 

LED Accept & Cancel 

Solar Option 

Colour Display 

MacKay Guardian 

Multi Elite 

Key features: 
  

 High strength stainless steel keeps it secure and 

rust free. 

 High-security, large capacity, stainless steel 

cash box. 

 Microsoft® Windows® CE operating system, 

combined with a 32-Bit ARM® Processor,   

 32 MB of SDRAM and 32 MB of Flash memory. 

 Flexible, modular design that is easy to upgrade, 

service and maintain. 

 Powerful off-site monitoring capabilities by add-

ing a communications kit and Sentinel TM Meter 

Management System. Monitor your equipment 

remotely, generate reports, and receive alerts, 

no matter where you are. 

 Comprehensive and easy-to-use configuration 

menus. 

 ADA Compliant. 

 Features a color VGA Liquid Crystal Display with 

back light, capable of displaying graphics. 

 English? Español? Français? The multi-language 

capability allows users to select the language of 

their choice to carry out transactions. 

 Offer end users security, convenience, and re-

ject fraudulent payment. Use MacKay's On-line 

Real-time Credit Card Approval feature utilizing 

secure PCI compliant electronic payment proc-

esses. 

 MacKay Meters backs its product lines with a 

solid warranty based on the confidence in the 

quality of its products. 

 

<over for specifications> 

TM 

Page 69 of 114



Features 

 

Security 

 High security locks for cash box, cash vault, and main 

door 

 Seven (7) point locking mechanism on vault door 

 System monitored access sensors on main and vault 

doors and sensor detecting presence of cash box 
 

Audit and Statistic 

 Local printouts of grand totals and subtotals for coins, 
bills and card transactions per type 

 Full or quick audit tickets are software selectable 

 

Maintenance 

 User-friendly graphic interface tools for diagnostics, 

configuration and editing 

 Easy access modular design 

 

Configuration 

 Flexibility through the MacKay Guardian™ Multi Elite 

user interface 

 User-friendly menus allow selection of tariff, ticket 

and display files 

 Programmable multiple tariff structures such as over-

lapping period, pre-payment and free ticket 

 User interface (display, keypad and dedicated soft-
ware), provides clear and concise operating instruc-

tions, messages, and graphics 

 Multi-language capability: any combination of English, 

French and/or Spanish is available as an option. 

Other languages available by special order 

 

Web-Based Hosted SentinelTM Meter Management 

System (Optional) 

 Remotely monitor and generate audit, transaction and 

occupancy reports for all on-street equipment using a 

web browser and secure web portal  

 Generates a variety of reports including grand totals 

and subtotals for coins, bills and card transactions 
per type, which can be exported as PDF or CSV files, 

or imported into other applications 

 

MacKay Guardian TM  Multi Elite Options 

 AC Fan 

 AC Heater Kit, includes an AC heater and an AC fan 

 Customizable front graphics for main door 

 Electronic Lock (vault and maintenance door) 

 Keypad feedback buzzer (optionally turned off) 

 Solar panel riser 

 MacKay’s SentinelTM Meter Management System 
 

Warranty 
J.J. MacKay Canada Limited, the manufacturer, guaran-

tees for a period of one year from the date of shipment 

against defects in workmanship and /or materials. 

 
 

As our policy is one of continuous product improvement and develop-

ment, we reserve the right to alter product specification and design.  

 

Photos are representative; product appearance may differ. 

General Specifications 
 

Environmental  

 Extended operating temperature range1:  -29°C  (-20°F) 

to 60°C (140°F) 

 Humidity: Up to 95% RH (non condensing) 

 

Cabinet Materials, Dimensions & Weight 

 Welded reinforced Grade 304-2B stainless steel (9 

gauge carbon steel equivalence)2 for cabinet and doors 

 Aluminium front with Lexan® display covers for the LCD 

screens, rate/instruction plate, LED panel and site 

branding display 

 Total installed weight (Solar, 40Ahr battery):   113 kg 

(249 lbs.) 

 Overall dimensions: 1524mm (60 inches) (H) x 343mm 

(13.5 inches) (W) x 295mm (11.6 inches) (D)  

 Overall height with solar panel: 2045mm (80.5 inches) 

 

Power Supply Configurations/Options 

 AC Single Phase, 110/120/220/240VAC, 50/60 Hz  

 Solar powered (20W panel) with 40Ahr battery (optional) 

 

Operating System & Hardware 

 Microsoft® Windows® CE operating system  

 Latest technology 32 Bit ARM® processor 

 Memory 32MB SDRAM  32MB Flash 
 

Communication Options 

 Ethernet port can support hardwire (Cat5) cable or add-

on WiFi devices for local network connection3  

 Serial RS232 port can support either GPRS or CDMA 

(1X) modem3 

 Ethernet port can support a line-of-sight pay by space 

primary/secondary network configuration4  

 Both wide area or local area pay by space network op-

tions are supported, allowing payment for any space, at 

any machine, at any time 

 Wireless handheld pay by space enforcement available  

 

Payment Systems 

 Coins 

 Tokens (optional) 

 Credit cards utilizing secure, on-line real-time PCI compli-

ant processes (optional) 

 MacKay Smart (Chip) Cards (optional) 

 Cell phone payment (optional) 

 Bills (optional) 

 

Ticket Printing 

 Thermal printer offers alphanumeric printing in various 

fonts and languages 

 Ticket size: Standard - Short 75mm (3 inches) x 57mm 

(2¼ inches) or Long 100mm (4 inches) x 57mm (2¼ 
inches).  Other lengths can be specially ordered 

 Ticket capacity: 4,000 3-inch tickets per roll 

Components 

 

Display 

 High contrast, color, sunlight readable, 640 x 480 pixels 

graphics LCD 

 Viewing area 114mm (4.5 inches) x 89mm (3.5 inches) 

 Self-adjusting contrast to temperature 

 LED back light 

 

Coin Acceptor 

 Programmable: Accepts up to 16 coins or tokens 

 Programmed coin acceptance can easily be turned on/off 

with a switch 

 

Card Reader (Optional) 

 Single slot, dual mode card reader captures magnetic 

stripe (ISO 7810/11) credit card data, and provides an 

ISO 7816 interface for smart card acceptance 

 

Keypads & Buttons 

 Tactile feedback keypad and buttons 

 Vandal resistant and rated for resistance to impact, shock 

and vibration to MIL standards 

 Sealed against ingress of water and dust to IP67, and 
designed for exposed outdoor and extreme environmental 

conditions 

 New - LED accept and cancel buttons that light up. 

 

Printer 

 Heavy-duty printer head with minimal moving parts ensur-

ing quality, reliability and endurance 

 Print life of over 20 million character lines 

 Designed for high-resolution printing 

 Guillotine type cutter with full or partial paper cutting 

options (software selectable) 

 Accessible for ease of maintenance 

 

Cash Box 

 Two (2) supplied with each machine, each with a conven-
ient carry handle 

 Rugged, secure, high-capacity 4.2 litres (1.1 US gallon), 

stainless steel container 

 Self-locking lid on removal, and includes a high security 

lock/key (unique key codes available upon request) 

 Printed audit record produced when cash box is removed 

from machine (software selectable) 

 

Bill Acceptor (Optional) 

 Built-in, integrated bill acceptor 

 Bill cassette with 600 or 1000 bill capacity secured in 

cash vault 

 Programmed bill acceptance can easily be turned on/off    

on-site 

 Reads bills inserted in any of 4 directions 

[1] All MacKay Guardian™ Elite components are operational within this range.  Standard sealed lead acid battery operational temperature rating is from 

-20C (-4F) to 50C (122F) when charging, and from -20C (-4F) to 60C (140F) when discharging. 

[2] Independent laboratory tests indicate that all things being equal, a component made of 11-gauge 304-2B stainless steel, would have equal or 

greater tensile strength, shear strength and malleability, as compared to the same component made out of 9-gauge carbon steel. 

[3] May require additional MacKay Guardian™ Multi Elite software modules, or 3rd party hardware. 

[4] Length of run limitations must be observed; primary machine is AC powered and network hub required. 

Copyright © 2011 J.J. MacKay Canada Limited.  All rights reserved.  The MacKay Logo, MacKay Guardian and Sentinel are either trademarks or registered trademarks 

of J.J. MacKay Canada Limited in Canada and other countries.  Microsoft and Windows are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the 

United States and/or other countries.  ARM is a registered trademark of ARM Limited.  All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.  J.J. MacKay 

Canada Limited reserves the right to modify the specifications without prior notice.  Please refer to our website for up-to-date specifications. 

Head Office: 

J.J. MacKay Canada Limited   Phone (902) 752-5124 

1342 Abercrombie Road, PO Box 338,  Fax (902) 752-5955 

New Glasgow, Nova Scotia, Canada B2H 5E3 

Head Office customer support and technical support: 

Toll free in North America: 1-888-4MACKAY  (462-2529) 

Fax (902) 752-4889 

Email customer.service@mackaymeters.com 

Web www.mackaymeters.com 

Sales Office: 

S P E C I F I C A T I O N S 

95LT0000300-11/11 

Page 70 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 9, 2015 

RE:    Dodge Street Water Tower Fence 
 
 
I am writing to request your approval to contract with Hulscher Fencing for the 
installation of a fence at the Dodge Street water tower site.  There are currently three 
communications tenants with equipment on the ground around the tower and on the 
tower.  The fencing is intended to secure the site and reduce the potential for injury to 
the public and vandalism to the equipment belonging to the tenants and the City.    
 
The cost to purchase and install the fence is $13,130.  One of the tenants, AT&T, has 
provided funding for the full cost of the fencing as well as landscaping and possibly a 
sidewalk to the fenced area.  Funds for the fence are included in the Water Fund of the 
proposed fiscal year 2015‐16 budget.  
 
Once the fencing is installed, a plan for landscaping to provide screening will be finalized 
to permit installation this spring.  I am attaching a site plan depicting the fencing and the 
specification (2230 3 Rail Flat Top 72” black aluminum) for the proposed fence.  The fence 
is the same as was installed around the downtown pump station. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   

 

Page 71 of 114



Fence Detail

Fenceline

Page 72 of 114



Page 73 of 114



Estimate
Date

4/18/2014

Estimate #

2372

Name / Address

City of Galena
c/o Mark Moran
312 1/2 N. Main St.
Galena, IL. 61036

1474 N. Irish Hollow Rd.
Galena, IL 61036

Established in 1981

Web Site:
www.hulscherfencing.com

Fax: 815-777-6068

Phone: 815-777-0268

E-mail:
cari@hulscherfencing.com

We hereby propose to furnish the material and perform the labor necessary for the construction of:

Customer Signature  ________________________________

Terms: 1/2 down, balance upon completionThe above prices and specifications are satisfactory and are
herby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as

specified. Payment will be made as outlined.

This estimate may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 30 days. Any alteration or deviation from the above specifications involving extra
costs will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.

Description Qty U/M Cost Total

Job: Standpipe

Material and labor to install 271' of 6' tall black Aluminum
fence, style #2230 having 1-3' and 1 double 10' gate using
State of IL. Prevailing Wages.

ft 13,130.00 13,130.00

Page 74 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 9, 2015 

RE:    Cobblestone Crossing Sidewalk 
 
 
At the February 23 meeting, the council approved an ordinance amending the annexation 
agreement for the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision.  As part of the amendment, several 
changes were made to the sidewalk plan for the development, including splitting the 
sidewalk along Cobblestone Boulevard between the east and west side of the street.  I am 
writing to propose what I hope to be the final change to the sidewalk plan. 
 
In the days following the approval of the amendment to the annexation agreement, the 
development owner, Don Wienen, contacted me and suggested a modification to the 
sidewalk plan.  He proposed moving all of the sidewalk along Cobblestone Boulevard to 
the west side of the street.  This is the location that was always preferred by our staff, but 
that would require more grading than the east side.    
 
The recently approved ordinance has not been executed pending this possible change.  
Our staff has updated the attachment/map to the ordinance to reflect the new location 
of the sidewalk along Cobblestone Boulevard.  No other changes have been made to the 
ordinance. 
 
I would suggest a motion to reconsider the ordinance and then a motion to approve the 
ordinance with the updated sidewalk map.   
 
 
 
 

 

Page 75 of 114



1 
 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 0‐15‐ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AMENDMENT TO AN ANNEXATION 
AGREEMENT PREVIOUSLY ENTERED INTO FOR A DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS COBBLESTONE 

CROSSING 

 
   
  WHEREAS, the City of Galena (“City”) and Linda Pluym, Kenneth Pluym, and Rick 
Hochman (“Original Owners”) entered into the Annexation Agreement for the Cobblestone 
Crossing Subdivision (the “Annexation Agreement”) dated April 16, 2003, and  
 
  WHEREAS, all of the rights and responsibilities under the Annexation Agreement have 
since been assigned by the Original Owners to the current owner of the Cobblestone Crossing 
Subdivision, Don Wienen (“Current Owner”); and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Current Owner has petitioned the City to amend the Annexation 
Agreement to permit changes to the requirement for sidewalks in the subdivision; and     
 

WHEREAS, the City and the Current Owner desire to amend the Annexation Agreement; 
and  
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to Notice the City Council conducted a public hearing on October 
27, 2014 at which time it considered the request of the Current Owner to amend the 
Annexation Agreement previously entered into; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article III (C) of the Annexation Agreement presently states as follows: 
 
 “Sidewalks will be required within the subdivision in accordance with City specifications 

and ordinances.  The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Owners and/or Developer 
from any claim or suit for damages, by any party, arising from the design, placement, 
engineering or construction of any such sidewalks required within the subdivision;” and    

 
WHEREAS, the City and the Current Owner agree that Article III (C) of the Annexation 

Agreement shall be amended to state as follows:  
 
 “A sidewalk shall be required along one side of the full length of Cobblestone 

Boulevard, one side of Woodland Court, and one side of Rolling Hill Court, as depicted on the 
plan attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Owners 
and/or Developer from any claim or suit for damages, by any party, arising from the design, 
placement, engineering or construction of any such sidewalks required within the subdivision;” 
and    

Page 76 of 114



2 
 

  
  WHEREAS, by motion adopted by the City Council on January 26, 2015, the Mayor is 
authorized and directed to execute, and the City Clerk is directed to attest the First Addendum 
to the Cobblestone Crossing Annexation Agreement; and  
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

SECTION I:  The recitals set forth herein are incorporated into this Ordinance as if 
restated verbatim. 
 
SECTION II:  That the Mayor be is hereby authorized and directed to execute, and the 
City Clerk is directed to attest, the First Addendum to the Cobblestone Crossing 
Annexation Agreement. 
 
SECTION III:  That the First Addendum to the Cobblestone Crossing Annexation 
Agreement, made a part of this Ordinance, is hereby approved. 
 
SECTION IV:  That this Ordinance be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
SECTION V:  Passed on this 26th day of January, A.D., 2015, in open Council 

 
AYES:        NAYS: 
            
              
 
 
            __________________________________________       
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR      
 
 
________________________________________ 
ATTEST: MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK  
 

Page 77 of 114



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
FIRST ADDENDUM 
TO THE COBBLESTONE  
CROSSING ANNEXATION  
AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  This First Addendum (“First Addendum”) is entered into as of January ______, 
2015, by and between the City of Galena, a municipal corporation of Jo Daviess County, 
Illinois (the “City”) and Don Wienen (“Current Owner”). 
 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 

  WHEREAS, the City of Galena (“City”) and Linda Pluym, Kenneth Pluym, and Rick 
Hochman (“Original Owners”) entered into the Annexation Agreement for the 
Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision (the “Annexation Agreement”) dated April 16, 2003, 
and  
 
  WHEREAS, all of the rights and responsibilities under the Annexation Agreement 
have since been assigned by the Original Owners to the Current Owner of the 
Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision, Don Wienen; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Current Owner has petitioned the City to amend the Annexation 
Agreement to permit changes to the requirement for sidewalks in the subdivision; and     
 

WHEREAS, the City and the Current Owner desire to amend the Annexation 
Agreement; and  
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to Notice the City Council conducted a public hearing on 
October 27, 2014 at which time it considered the request of the Current Owner to 
amend the Annexation Agreement previously entered into; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article III (C) of the Annexation Agreement presently states as 
follows:  

 

Page 78 of 114



Page 2 of 3 

 

“Sidewalks will be required within the subdivision in accordance with City 
specifications and ordinances.  The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the 
Owners and/or Developer from any claim or suit for damages, by any party, arising from 
the design, placement, engineering or construction of any such sidewalks required 
within the subdivision;” and  

   
WHEREAS, the City and the Current Owner agree that Article III (C) of the 

Annexation Agreement shall be amended to state as follows:  
 
 “A sidewalk shall be required along one side of the full length of Cobblestone 

Boulevard, one side of Woodland Court, and one side of Rolling Hill Court, as depicted 
on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The City agrees to hold harmless and 
indemnify the Owners and/or Developer from any claim or suit for damages, by any 
party, arising from the design, placement, engineering or construction of any such 
sidewalks required within the subdivision;” and    
   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements 
between the parties, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 

1. The recitals set forth herein are incorporated into this First Addendum as 
if restated verbatim. 

 
2. A sidewalk shall be required along one side of the full length of 

Cobblestone Boulevard, one side of Woodland Court, and one side of 
Rolling Hill Court, as depicted on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Owners and/or 
Developer from any claim or suit for damages, by any party, arising from 
the design, placement, engineering or construction of any such sidewalks 
required within the subdivision. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second Addendum 

as of the date set forth above, and, by so executing, each of the parties warrants that it 
possesses full right and authority to enter into this Second Addendum. 
 
 

          CITY OF GALENA, an Illinois 
          Municipal Corporation 
 
 
 
          BY: ___________________________ 
            Terry Renner, Its Mayor 
 

Page 79 of 114



Page 3 of 3 

 

Attest to: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 
 
 
 

DON WIENEN, owner: 
             
 
            BY: _______________________________ 
                
 
 
            ATTEST TO: ________________________ 
                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Joseph Nack: 
City Attorney 
City of Galena 
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL  61036 
TEL:  (815) 777‐1050 
FAX:  (815) 777‐3083 
 
 

Page 80 of 114



Page 81 of 114



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 7, 2015 

RE:    Budget Approval    
 
 
Thank you for your participation in the recent budget work sessions and the public hearing for 
the proposed budget.  I am writing to provide a summary of the few changes to the proposed 
budget that were discussed at both work sessions.  I am also providing the plan that was 
discussed for responding to the potential reduction of the state income tax distribution to the 
city by the State of Illinois.   
 
As I reported at the first budget work session, one salary was inadvertently omitted from the 
proposed budget.  I proposed adding the salary and making two adjustments to proposed 
revenue line items.  Those changes are summarized on the following page.  Taking into account 
those changes, the budget totals for the General Fund and other funds are shown in Table 1 
below.       
 

Table 1.  FY 2015‐16 Budget Totals with Proposed Changes 
 

  Revenue  Expenses 

General Fund    $   3,568,985    $    3,550,035  

Other Funds   $   6,519,670   $    6,532,985  

TOTAL   $   10,088,655    $  10,083,020  

     

Budget (Deficit)/Surplus $5,635 

 
With the proposed changes, the General Fund would have a budgeted surplus of $18,950 and 
the total budget would have a surplus of $5,635.  Importantly, we expect to finish the coming 
fiscal year with healthy reserves and in compliance with our Minimum Fund Balance Policy 
across all 23 funds.   
 
The four‐tiered response plan to the possible reduction of income tax revenue is also attached.   
Since we are unsure about what, if any, cuts the State of Illinois may impose, my understanding 
is that you wish to wait until the April 27 city council meeting to take final action on the budget.   

   

 

Page 82 of 114



2 of 2 

When you are ready to take final action, approval of the budget may be made by motion.  Any 
changes to the March 16 proposed budget should be included in the motion.    
 
No additional work sessions are planned.  April 27 would be the final opportunity to adopt the 
budget before the start of the fiscal year on May 1.   
 
Thank you for your engaged participation in the budget process.  It is evident from the good 
discussion and questions during our work sessions that we all remain focused on making sure 
our operations and spending are structured for long‐term financial viability. 
 
Please let me know if you have questions. 

 

Page 83 of 114



March 16 Budget Revenues Over
Budget Expenses

General Fund 30,000$                
Other Funds 1,435$                  
Total Budget 31,435$                

REVENUES
Line Item Fund Name Add / (Deduct) Description

General Fund
01.344.1 General Fund Sales Tax $8,700 Adjust revenue projection based on current year actual
01.345.1 General Fund Local Use $5,000 Adjust revenue projection based on IML 

Total General Fund Revenue Changes 13,700$                 

Line Item Fund Name Add / (Deduct) Description
Other Funds

Total Other Fund Revenue Changes -$                      

TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES 13,700$                  

EXPENSES 
Line Item Fund Name Add / (Deduct) Description

General Fund
01.11.411.00 General Fund Salaries and Wages 12,375$                  Add portion of salary that was inadvertently omitted 
01.41.411.00 General Fund Salaries and Wages 12,375$                  Add portion of salary that was inadvertently omitted 

Total General Fund Changes  24,750$                 

Line Item Fund Name Add / (Deduct) Description
Other Funds
17.42.411.00 Parks Salaries and Wages 9,900 Add portion of salary that was inadvertently omitted
17.52.422.00 Parks Salaries Temporary (10,000)$                Reduce total for seasonal employees based on expected cost
51.42.411.00 Water Salaries and Wages 14,850$                  Add portion of salary that was inadvertently omitted

Total Other Funds Changes 14,750$                 

TOTAL EXPENSE CHANGES 39,500$                  

General Fund Surplus/(Deficit) $18,950  

($13,315)
Total Budget Surplus/(Deficit) $5,635
Other Funds Surplus/(Deficit)

FY 2015-16 Revenues over Expenditures (Changes to March 16 Proposed Budget)
Page 84 of 114



Tier 1 General Fund Revenues

Food and Beverage Tax $22,000

Liquor Licenses $6,750

Contractor Licenses $5,000

TIER 1 TOTAL REVENUES $33,750

Tier 2 General Fund Expenses

  Administration Conginency ($1,500)

Transfer to Liability Fund ($12,465)

Mark/Cindy/Andy Salary to WS Fund ($22,090)

Travel and Training ($4,600)

Police Custodial ($4,000)

Police Software ($900)

Police Bldg Maintenance ($6,000)

Parade Barricades ($5,000)

Engineer Consulting ($2,000)

Enginering GIS Consulting ($1,500)

TIER 2 TOTAL EXPENSES ($60,055)

Tier 3 General Fund Expenses

Facility Manager Full‐Time Wage ($28,000)

Tier 4 General Fund Expenses

Public Works Tractor ($60,000)

TIER 1‐4 TOTAL $181,805

Potential State Budget Cut Response Plan

City of Galena Fiscal Year 2015‐16 Budget

Page 85 of 114



1 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

BETWEEN 
 

CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
 

AND 
 

JO DAVIESS CONSERVATION FOUNDATION, INC. 
 

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is hereby made and entered into by and 
between the City of Galena, Illinois, hereinafter referred to as “the City”, and the Jo Daviess 
Conservation Foundation, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “JDCF.” 
 

A. PURPOSE. 
 
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is to establish a mutually 
agreeable framework for cooperatively managing certain real property owned by the  
City located in East Galena Township, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, generally referred to 
as “Gateway Park.” 
 

B. STATEMENT OF MUTUAL BENEFIT AND INTERESTS. 
 
The acquisition and restoration of Gateway Park represents an ongoing cooperative effort 
between the City and JDCF. This ongoing partnership has allowed both parties to achieve 
their mutual goals of providing publically-accessible open space for the residents of Jo 
Daviess County. Neither organization would have been able to successfully complete the 
project if they had undertaken the project on their own. 
 
The parties entered into a Cooperative Agreement on May 18, 2011 to facilitate the 
efforts both parties to acquire, restore, and manage Gateway Park, which is on file at the 
offices of both parties. Section III, Subsection C, Paragraph 3.1 of the Cooperative 
Agreement states that the parties will develop a memorandum of understanding for the 
purpose of the long-term management of Gateway Park. This Memorandum of 
Understanding serves this purpose. 
 

C. BOTH PARTIES WILL: 
 

1. Work cooperatively with one another to seek out and secure additional sources of 
funding for additional public use amenities, including but not limited to benches, 
interpretive signs, and kiosks.  Private donations will be collected and processed 
through JDCF to provide charitable tax deduction to donors. 

2. Work cooperatively with one another in the planning, construction, and 
installation of public use amenities not currently present at Gateway Park. 

3. Limit their management activities to those activities and uses permitted by the 
Grant of Conservation Right and Easement recorded in the office of the Jo 
Daviess County Recorder on June 1, 2011 as document number 363054. 

Page 86 of 114



2 
 

4. Limit their management activities to those activities and uses that do not impede 
the right-of-way in favor of an adjacent landowner as described in the Easement 
Agreement recorded in the office of the Jo Daviess County Recorder on 
November 19, 2010 as document number 359771. 

5. Limit their management activities to those activities and uses permitted by the 
Illinois Clean Energy Community Foundation, the Grand Victoria Foundation, 
and the Doris Duke Charitable Foundation, which provided grant funding to 
JDCF to purchase Gateway Park in 2010. Grant agreements between JDCF and 
these funders are on file at the offices on JDCF. 

6. Limit their management activities to those activities and uses permitted and 
prescribed by the “Galena Gateway Park Management Plan” attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and referred to herein as “Management Plan.” This Management Plan is 
in effect from 2014 until 2019.   

 
D. JDCF WILL: 

 
1. Maintain and manage all natural areas including woodlands, grasslands, savanna 

restorations, and prairie restorations, as described in the Management Plan 
attached hereto. 

2. Conduct prescribed burns of native restored prairie, grasslands, savannas and 
woodlands in accordance with the Management Plan attached hereto. 

3. Maintain and mow all firebreaks, as described in the Management Plan attached 
hereto. Grassy firebreaks will be maintained to serve a second purpose as 
recreational trails for use by the public.  

4. Provide leadership for and direct the activities of other individuals, organizations, 
groups, and volunteers that may assist in the management of Gateway Park, 
including the Galena Area Land Enthusiasts (“GALE”) and the Northwest Illinois 
Prairie Enthusiasts (“NIPE”). 
 

E. THE CITY WILL: 
 

1. Maintain all public use infrastructure and developments, including but not limited 
to the entrance road, entrance sign, culverts, parking lot, fences, paved (gravel) 
trails, utilities, bathrooms, interpretive signs, benches, kiosks, and any other such 
developments that the City may establish in the future. 

2. Maintain a 4-foot wide mowed grassy buffer on all sides of the parking lot and 
paved trails, as described in the Management Plan attached hereto. 

3. Maintain and post all property boundaries, as described in the Management Plan 
attached hereto. 

4. Clear snow and ice from the entrance road, parking lot, and other paved areas as 
the City sees fit. 

 
F. IT IS MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE 

PARTIES THAT: 
 

Page 87 of 114



3 
 

1. Amendment. This MOU may be amended or modified by the mutual consent of 
the parties. Any amendments or modifications to this MOU shall be executed in 
writing and signed and dated by both parties. 
 

2. Term. The term of this MOU shall commence on May 1, 2015 and expire on May 
1, 2018. 
 

3. Responsibilities of Parties. The parties shall utilize their own resources, including 
expenditure of their own funds, to implement the activities described in Sections 
C, D, and E herein. 
 

4. Unforeseen Future Needs.  If an unforeseen management need arises at Gateway 
Park and neither party is responsible for that need under the terms of this MOU, 
this MOU may be amended as described herein to address that unforeseen need. 

 
5. Principal Contacts. The principal contacts for this instrument are: 

 
Janelle Keeffer, Facilities Manager Ryan Getz, Director of Land Stewardship 
City of Galena    Jo Daviess Conservation Foundation 
101 Green Street   126 N. Main Street, PO Box 216 
Galena, Illinois 61036   Elizabeth, Illinois 61028 
815-777-1050    815-858-9100 
jkeeffer@cityofgalena.org   steward@jdcf.org  
 

6. Non-Obligation of Funds. Nothing in this MOU shall obligate either party to 
expend or transfer any funds to the other party. Specific management activities at 
Gateway Park that involve or require a transfer of funds from one party to the 
other shall require the execution of separate written agreements that are 
contingent upon the availability of funds. Negotiation, execution, and 
administration of each such agreement must comply with all applicable statutes 
and regulations. 
 

7. Additional Real Property. In the event that either party acquires fee title to any 
real property located adjacent to Gateway Park for the purpose of creating an 
addition to Gateway Park, this MOU shall apply to any such additions to Gateway 
Park. 

 
The PARTIES HERETO have executed this instrument. 
 
 
 
__________________________________  __________________________________ 
Terry Renner, Mayor   Date   Steve Barg, Executive Director Date 
City of Galena      Jo Daviess Conservation Foundation

Page 88 of 114



 1

Galena Gateway Park Management Plan  
__________________________________________________________________ 
Authors: Jeff Horn, Ed Strenski, Janelle Keefer, Andy Lewis 
County:  East Galena Township 
Physical Address (if known):  U.S. Route 20 West, Galena, IL 
Legal Description: T.28N. R.1E. S.21 
Acres: 100 acres 
Land Ownership: City of Galena 
Land Manager (if different from above): 
Date of Acquisition:  Originally purchase by the Jo Daviess Conservation Foundation (JDCF) on  
11/19/2010, transferred to City of Galena 6/1/2011 
 
SUMMARY: A description of the property (size, location, agricultural, habitat type, why we acquired 
this property).   
 
The City of Galena owns the 100 acre Galena Gateway Park and is referred to herein as the 
“Park.” The property consists of significant open space with spectacular natural resources 
including the signature “Gateway” to the City of Galena, and gives the commanding view of the 
City of Galena and its National Registry of Historic Places Historic District, as well as views of 
the surrounding Tri-state area as people drive around Horseshoe Mound along Highway 20. The 
Mississippi River bluffs in the State of Iowa, and the geological mounds of Sinsinawa Mound 
and Platteville Mound in the State of Wisconsin are visible from the Park. The Park fronts 
Highway 20 for 0.21 miles, which is also along two scenic byways, the federally recognized 
Great Mississippi River Road and the Illinois recognized Illinois Grant Memorial Highway.  
 
SOILS AND GEOLOGY: 
The soils of the property are of two soil associations identified in the Soil Survey of Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois (1996). Along the south boundary of the property from Highway 20 is a Rozetta-
Eleroy-Derinda Association. According to the Soil Survey “This association consists of soils on 
knolls and ridges and on side slopes along drainageways, It is highly dissected by narrow 
drainageways. It is wedged between two major formations of limestone on uplands.” The 
Property is adjacent to Horseshoe Mound, which is made of the Silurian limestone that caps the 
highest points in Jo Daviess County. The Park soils across from Horseshoe Mound are of this 
soil association with bedrock of the Maquoketa shale.  
 
Transitioning through the rest of the property, the center and northern reaches are a Dubuque-
Lacrescent-Dunbarton Association. According to the Jo Daviess County Soil Survey “Most areas 
are used for cultivated crops or for hay or pasture. The sloping and strongly sloping soils are 
poorly suited to cultivated crops and to hay and pasture, and the steep and very steep soils are 
generally unsuited. Erosion is the major hazard. The soil association is moderately suited to 
woodland. It is well suited to woodland wildlife habitat.” This area is where the land transitions 
from the Maquoketa shale down through the Galena limestone, which is Ordivician in age. 
Several areas on the steep slopes of the north portions of the Park have the Galena limestone 

Appendix APage 89 of 114



 2

exposed.   
  
Much of the soil types indicate being previously wooded and were most likely cleared within the 
past 200 years for agricultural production. In the past 60 years much of the steep areas of the 
Park have begun to succeed back into early successional forest. The open ridgelines were 
cropped for several generations, until the past 20-30 years, during which time the entire property 
was pastured with cattle. The past 2-3 years the ridgelines were put back into row crop 
production and the cattle grazing was removed from the rest of the property. The Park is adjacent 
to the geological formation of Horseshoe Mound, which is an Illinois Natural Area Inventory 
Site (INAI# 0608) for its geological formation. This section is permanently protected by the 
Natural Land Institute with their 35 acre Richardson conservation easement. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES: A description of the conservation values or attributes (the reasons why we 
protected the property). 
 
Currently the Park has three land uses: 50 acres of remnant oak savanna, forest, and early 
successional forest, 35 acres currently being restored to tallgrass prairie, and 15 acres of 
predominately cool season grassland, but with some small pockets of low quality remnant 
prairies. In viewing the 1940’s aerials of the Park property, it was largely in crop production, yet 
several different land uses are evident, suggesting a mixture of corn, hay, and small grains such 
as oats or wheat. The other half of the property is assumed to have been grazed, yet it was 
substantially open, with approximately half being oak savanna and the other half being 
grassland. 
 
The Galena Gateway Park Property provides habitat for a variety of wildlife. The Property 
implements the Illinois State Wildlife Action Plan (SWAP) adopted in 2005 by the Department 
of Natural Resources of the State of Illinois (IDNR 2005) by addressing action items of the 
Forest Campaign, Farmland & Prairie Campaign, Land & Water Campaign, Green Cities 
Campaign, as well as the management guidelines of the Wisconsin Driftless Natural Division 
and Upper Mississippi River and Illinois River Natural Division. In particular the Property 
includes both woodland and grassland habitats. These habitat types can support species identified 
as Species in the Greatest Need of Conservation (SGNC) for both natural divisions. 
  
According to the Illinois SWAP, the Wisconsin Driftless Area Natural Division supports the 
following 7 SGNC that have been documented on the Galena Gateway Park Property: chimney 
swift, savanna sparrow, field sparrow, northern flicker, sandhill crane, bald eagle, and bobolink. 
In addition the Park property can potentially support the following 10 SGNC: Illinois chorus 
frog, pickerel frog, red-shouldered hawk, broad-winged hawk, brown creeper, willow flycatcher, 
read-headed woodpecker, American woodcock, brown thrasher, and bobcat.   
  
During the spring of 2010 JDCF staff conducted a preliminary site inspection, which included 
drafting an initial species list for the Park property. This included a preliminary plant, mammal, 
and bird species list. During the baseline documentation report field visits some additional 
species have been documented. These lists are only preliminary and a comprehensive inventory 
over the course of the entire growing season will likely add substantially to the current list of 
species included herein. At the time of this report a total of 89 plant species, of which 63 are 
native and 25 are invasive, 5 mammals, and 41 bird species have been identified. 

Appendix APage 90 of 114



 3

  
CULTURAL RESOURCES:  
The Galena Gateway Park Property contains within it one Illinois Archaeological Sites (IAS) on 
record with the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency. Within the immediate vicinity there are 
three other sites on record with IHPA. The site located within the Park boundary is the first site 
listed below, (11JD301). The three other features are found on adjacent properties. Below is a 
copy of the IAS site file information for both archaeological features, and a map showing the 
location of the rock shelters is included herein in Exhibit C maps. 
 
Legal Location: Sections 16 and 21, East Galena Township 
Topographic Location: Bluffs, terrace, and floodplain along the east bank of the Galena River 
Local Location: Approximately a mile northwest of Galena 
  
IAS Site Number: 11JD301 
Site Name:  
Legal Location: SE1/4, NE1/4, NW1/4, NE1/4, T28N, R1E, Section 21, East Galena Township. 
Topographic Location: The site is located on an upland bluff slope overlooking an intermittent 
stream and about ½ mile east of the Galena River. 
Comments: This site is reported to contain mid to late 19th century barn remains and a 20th  
century windmill. The barn had a bedrock floor and cut limestone foundation. A nearby 
depression may be a lead mining pit and a more recent cement trough is located near the wind 
mill. Artifacts observed in the area include square nails, hand made bricks and a broken 
whetstone wheel. The site is believed to span the time period from 1840-70 to the middle of the 
20th century. 
 
Additional IAS Comments: 
The area enclosed and adjacent to Gateway Park likely contains more sites than are presently 
known, especially sites related to 19th century lead mining. The knoll at the tip of the ridge in the 
SE1/4 of Section 16 would be a prime location for a deflate mound or pre-contact Native 
American burials. The knoll is prominent, overlooks the entry of a tributary to the Galena River, 
and has a commanding view up and down the valley. The terrace and upland portions of the 
property may also contain early Native American habitation sites. This area also is close to 
where Moses Lester, an African American from Galena, held a mining lease in the late 19th 
century. It is not known if Moses exercised the lease rights and mined in the vicinity.  
  
RESTRICTIONS:  
The Property is permanently protected by a conservation easement donated to JDCF by the City 
of Galena at the time the property was transferred in May 2011. The conservation easement 
permanently protects the public use, scenic, natural, and cultural resources of the property. A 
summary of the reserved and prohibited uses are summarized below: 
  
Prohibited Use: 

 No industrial use, and no inconsistent commercial uses 
 No buildings, except within the building envelope 
 No alteration of the topography and hydrology, except as necessary with allowed uses 
 No alteration of wetlands or watercourses, etc., except as necessary with allowed uses 

Appendix APage 91 of 114



 4

 No subdivision, except as allowed below 
 No destruction of native flora, except as allowed below 
 No ATV recreational uses, except on roadways and permissible for hunting and land 

management activities. 
 No lighting of the property, except in the building envelope and used as indirect 

downward lighting. 
 No agricultural activities, except if used as land management activities. 
 No significant change to the scenic and aesthetic features of the property. 

 
Reserved Rights: 

 The property will be open for passive recreation uses 
 Passive recreation uses may include hiking, walking, photography, nature observation, 

outdoor education, picnicking, cross-country skiing, snowshoeing, bicycling, horseback 
riding, and primitive camping. 

o City may charge user fees to defray cost to manage the property 
o City can make reasonable rules and regulations for the permitted uses an 

necessary 
 Incidental use by businesses of the property will not be a commercial use. There will be 

no de minimis use of the property for commercial activity. 
 Trails are permitted for pedestrian and equestrian uses. 
 Recreational structures which support the passive recreational uses of the property are 

permitted as necessary. 
 There is a building envelope of approximately 5 acres to be used for some interpretive 

center, office, etc. The envelope must be surveyed, approved, and the conservation 
easement amended if the envelope is used in the future. The envelope may be subdivided 
from the original parcel if necessary and the configuration of the survey can be changed. 

 Storage and disposal of waste must happen within the building envelope. 
 Fences can be maintained, built, or removed as needed. 
 Access roads are allowed for the public uses. 
 The vegetation and timber can be managed to maintain the savanna, woodland, tree, 

forest, prairie, and grassland habitats of the property. Specifically, vegetation can be 
removed if it threatens human health or safety, is infested, is non-native or invasive. Veg. 
can be burned, mowed, or removed to maintain the character of the land. The timber can 
be thinned, but any harvesting of trees requires approval of the JDCF. 

 Land management activities will not cause significant soil degradation, erosion, or 
pollution. 
  

PUBLIC USE INFRASTRUCTURE:  
The intended future uses of Galena Gateway Park include creating a site that is managed to 
restore and enhance native habitats, but to also allow for several types of passive recreational 
uses. It is the intent of JDCF and the City of Galena to pursue grants and donations to develop 
the site. Both parties sought and received funding specifically from the Illinois Department of 
Natural Resources (IDNR) Open Space Land Acquisition & Development (OSLAD) grant 
program. These grant funds were used to install a visitor trail system, signs, parking lot, water 

Appendix APage 92 of 114



 5

hook up, and bathrooms. There are also plans to install a kiosk, benches, and interpretive signs as 
funds become available. 
  
There is a 5 acre building envelope described in the conservation easement and baseline 
documentation report. The intent is for a future interpretive center, museum, or educational 
center for public use. Accordingly it would need to be approved, surveyed, funded, and designed. 
Yet at the time of transfer of the property and recording of the conservation easement, JDCF and 
the City wish to allow for this in the future if something develops. 
  
MANAGEMENT ISSUES: A description of potential threats to the conservation values or areas of 
special concern (such as invasive species, neighbor encroachment, unauthorized access).  
 
One of the intents of JDCF and the City of Galena is to manage and restore the natural habitats 
of the Park. As stated previously there are approximately 50 acres of remnant oak savanna and 
forest, portions of which are very young early successional forest. Approximately 35 acres have 
been restored to tallgrass prairie, and approximately 15 acres of grassland, of which the majority 
is currently cool season grassland with some pockets of low quality remnant native prairies. It is 
the intent of JDCF and City to use the management plan as the guide for future restoration and 
management. Below are the general intentions of what will be conducted with the land: 
  
Forest: There are approximately 50 acres of remnant savanna, forest, and early successional 
forest on the property. This area will have Timber Stand Improvement activities conducted. 
These will include the cutting and thinning of invasive and over abundant trees to favor the 
release and regeneration of the oak species present on the site. Oak species that will be favored 
include bur, white, red, and black oak. Areas which are more characteristic of oak savanna will 
require much more extensive woody species removal to restore the open canopy characteristic of 
oak savannas. There are large amounts of invasive and non-native species that should be 
eradicated, including buckthorn, multi-flora rose, Japanese barberry, and honeysuckle. These 
areas will benefit from prescribed burns to help manage any resprouting of undesirable woody 
species and encourage the native flora to re-establish. There is one stand of Kentucky coffee 
trees, locally a unique and rare species which are at their northern edge of their native habitat 
range. This area is identified here in and should be managed to allow them to continue to grow, 
reproduce, and expand. 
  
Prairie: The 35 prairie restoration has been completed in 3 stages. The first 7 acres were seeded 
in the fall of 2012, the next 14 acres in the fall of 2013, and the final 14 acres seeded in the fall 
of 2014. As the prairie units have been established, the Northwest Illinois Prairie Enthusiasts 
(NIPE), the Friends of Galena Gateway Park volunteer crew (FOG), and JDCF have removed 
invasive plants from the prairie restorations. These prairies will be used to collect seed for future 
restorations and interseeding areas at the Park. 
  
Grassland: There are some low quality prairie remnants and cool season grassland areas located 
throughout the park. These areas are currently being leased to be bailed for hay. This helps 
reduce invasive plants from becoming established and reduces woody plants. These areas have 
been burned in the prescribed fires that have been conducted in the savanna and woodlands. 
   
  

Appendix APage 93 of 114



 6

MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN:  
According to the management issues summarized above, there are plans to conduct land 
management and habitat restoration activities with three main habitat types of the property. In 
addition, there are public use amenities in place with plans to add more. The timing of these 
activities is subject to change, largely based upon funding available for the certain land 
management or public use activities. Below is a current summary of the status to fund these 
activities including the allocated and anticipated funding sources and a general timeline of when 
the activities are anticipated to occur.  
 
Public Use: Galena Gateway Park was opened to the public officially in September 2014 after 
the ADA trail system, parking lot, water, and access road were completed. The foundations for 
the bathrooms are planned to be completed in the spring of 2015. Additional amenities include 
mowed trails, picnic tables, benches, and interpretive signage. As noted above, there is a 5 acre 
building envelope which can be used for a public use building in the future.  
 
JDCF and the City of Galena plan to work cooperatively to raise funds for park benches. 
 
 
ATTACHED MAPS: 
Exhibit A: Land Use Timeline & Map 
Exhibit B: Aerial Map 
Exhibit C: Topographical Map 
Exhibit D: Soils Map and Summary Worksheet 
 

Appendix APage 94 of 114



 7

 
Habitat/Area Activity Timeline Agency/Lead Person 
Oak Savanna Brush clearing/selective tree 

removal/invasive species control 
Dormant season 
2014-2019 

FOG/JDCF 

Prairie 
Restorations 

Invasive Species Removal Growing Season 
2014-2019 

NIPE/FOG 

Cool Season 
Grasses 

Haying Growing Season 
2014-2019 

Farm tenant 

Oak Savanna Prescribed Fire Fall 2014 JDCF/NIPE/FOG 

1st prairie 
restoration unit (7 
acres) 

Prescribed Fire  Spring 2015 JDCF/NIPE/FOG 

Parking Lot area  Bathroom installation Spring 2015 City of Galena 
Trail Head Kiosk installation Summer 2015 Boy Scouts?  

ADA 
Trail/Parking lot 

Mow 4 ft. wide on perimeter July 2015 City of Galena 

Oak 
Savanna/Prairie 
Restorations 

Mow fire breaks Summer/Fall 2015 JDCF 
Possibly farm tenant 

Property wide Create grass trail system Summer 2015-2019 FOG/JDCF/City of 
Galena 

Oak Savanna Seed acorns  Fall 2014-2019 FOG 
Oak Savanna Interseed following burns 2014-2019 FOG/JDCF 
Oak Savanna 
(West) and 2nd 
prairie restoration 
unit 

Prescribed Fire Spring 2016 JDCF/NIPE/FOG 

3rd prairie 
restoration unit 

Prescribed Fire Spring 2017 JDCF/NIPE/FOG 

Property-wide Post and maintain property 
boundary 

2014-2019 City of Galena 

Property-wide Repair and maintain culverts, 
access roads, paths 

2014-2019 City of Galena 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix APage 95 of 114



 8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Galena Gateway Park Ecological 
Restorations

Appendix APage 96 of 114



 9

Appendix APage 97 of 114



 
10

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A
Page 98 of 114



 
11

  

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A
Page 99 of 114



 12

Gateway Prairie Restoration 
seeding list 

Allium cernuum nodding onion 

Amorpha canescens leadplant 

Andropogon gerardii big bluestem 

Anemone virginiana tall thimbleweed 

Arnoglossum atriplicifolia Pale Indian Plantain 

Asclepias verticillata whorled milkweed 

Astragalus canadensis canadian milkvetch 

Baptisia lactea indigo 

Carex vulpinoidea Fox sedge 

Castilleja coccinea Indian Paintbrush 

Chamaecrista fasciculata partridge pea 

Coreopsis palmata stiff tickseed 

Coreopsis tripteris tall tickseed 

Dalea candida white prairie clover 

Dalea purpurea purple prairie clover 

Desmanthus illinoensis Illinois bundle flower 

Desmodium canadense showy ticktrefoil 

Desmodium illinoense Illinois Ticktrefoil 

Dodecatheon meadia Shooting star 

Echinacea pallida pale purple coneflower 

Echinacea purpurea eastern purple coneflower 

Elymus canadensis Canada wildrye 

Eragrostis trichoides Sand Love grass 

Eryngium yuccifolium Rattlesnake master 

Eupatorium altissimum tall boneset 

Euphorbia corollata Flowering spurge 

Euthamia graminifolia Flat‐topped Goldenrod 

Euthamia gymnospermoides Plains grass‐leaved goldenrod 

Gaura biennis biennal guara 

Gentiana alba Plain Gentian 

Helianthus mollis ashy sunflower 

Heliopsis helianthoides smooth oxeye 

Hypericum pyramidatum great st. johnswort 

Lespedeza capitata prairie bushclover 

Liatris aspera tall blazing star 

Liatris pycnostachya Prairie blazing star 

Monarda fistulosa wild bergamot 

Oligoneuron rigidum Stiff Goldenrod 

Parthenium integrifolium wild quinine 

Penstemon digitalis talus slope penstemon 

Potentilla arguta tall cinquefoil 

Appendix APage 100 of 114



 13

Pycnanthemum tenuifolium narrowleaf mountainmint 

Pycnanthemum virginianum virginia mountainmint 

Ratibida pinnata pinnate prairie coneflower 

Rudbeckia hirta pulcherrima blackeyed susan 

Rudbeckia laciniata cutleaf coneflower 

Rudbeckia subtomentosa pursh sweet coneflower 

Rudbeckia triloba browneyed susan 

Schizachyrium scoparium Little Bluestem 

Silphium integrifolium Rosinweed 

Silphium laciniatum compassplant 

Silphium terebinthinaceum prairie rosinweed 

Solidago missouriensis fasciculata missouri goldenrod 

Solidago speciosa jejunifolia showy goldenrod 

Sorghastrum nutans indiangrass 

Sporobolus heterolepis Prairie Dropseed 

Symphyotrichum ericoides Heath Aster 

Symphyotrichum laeve Smooth Blue Aster 

Symphyotrichum nova-angliae New England Aster 

Symphyotrichum oolentangiensis Sky blue aster 

Teucrium canadense canada germander 

Tradescantia ohiensis spiderwort 

Verbena hastata swamp verbena 

Veronicastrum virginicum culver's root 

Zizia aurea Golden alexander 

Appendix APage 101 of 114



 14

Gateway Park Species Lists: Plant List 
Scientific  Common Cons. # 
Acer negundo Boxelder 0 
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 5 
Achillea millefolium Yarrow 2 
Alliaria officinalis Garlic Mustard -3 
Ambrosia artemisiifolia Common Ragweed 0 
Anemone virginiana Tall Thimbleweed 2 
Antennaria plantaginifolia Pussy Toes 6 
Aquilegia canadensis Columbine 5 
Asclepias verticillata Whorled Milkweed 2 
Aster lateriflorus Side-Flowering Aster 4 
Berberis thunbergii Japanese Barberry -2 
Bidens vulgata Tall Beggar's Tick 0 
Bouteloua curtipendula Side-Oats Grama 7 
Campanula americana Tall Bellflower 2 
Camptosorus rhizophyllus Walking Fern 10 
Carduus nutans Nodding Thistle -3 
Carya cordiformis Bitternut Hickory 7 
Chenopodium album Lambs Quarters 2 
Coronilla varia Crown Vetch -1 
Crataegus coccinea Scarlet Hawthorn 2 
Cystopteris fragilis Fragile Fern 6 
Dactylis glomerata Orchard Grass 0 
Daucus carota Queen Anne's Lace 1 
Elymus villosus Silky Wild Rye 5 
Eupatorium altissimum Tall Boneset 0 
Eupatorium rugosum White Snakeroot 4 
Fragaria virginiana Wild Strawberry 2 
Fraxinus americana White Ash 5 
Geum canadense Wood Avens 0 
Gymnocladus dioicus Kentuckey Coffee Tree 8 
Hackelia virginiana Stickseed 0 
Hypericum punctatum Spotted Saint John's Wort 1 
Hypericum pyramidatum Great St. John's Wort 10 
Juglans nigra Black Walnut 5 
Juniperis virginiana Red Cedar 3 
Leonurus cardiaca Motherwort -2 
Lobelia inflata Indian Tobacco 4 

Appendix APage 102 of 114



 15

Lonicera tatarica Tartarian Honeysuckle -2 
Monarda fitulosa Wild Bergamont 4 
Morus alba Mulberry 1 
Nepeta cataria Catnip 0 
Oenothera biennis Evening Primrose 1 
Osmorhiza longistylis Sweet Cicely 3 
Panicum implicatum Panic Grass 3 
Parthenocissus quinquefolia Virginia Creeper 4 
Pellaea glabella Purple Cliffbrake 10 
Phalaris arundinacea Reed Canary Grass -3 
Phleum pratense Timothy 1 
Plantago lanceolata English Plantain -1 
Poa pratensis Kentucky Blue Grass 0 
Populus deltoides Cottonwood 2 
Populus grandidentata Big Toothed Aspen 6 
Potentilla recta Sulphur Cinquefoil 2 
Prunella vulgaris Healall 2 
Prunus serotina Black Cherry 2 
Pycnanthemum virginianum Mountain Mint 5 
Pyrus malus Apple Tree 1 
Quercus alba White Oak 6 
Quercus borealis Red Oak 7 
Quercus macrocarpa Bur Oak 4 
Rhamnus cathartica Common Buckthorn -3 
Ribes missouriense Gooseberry 5 
Robinia pseudo acacia Black Locust 2 
Rosa multiflora Multiflora Rose -3 
Rubus occidentalis Black Raspberry 2 
Scirpus atrovirens Dark Green Bulrush 5 
Setaria glauca Yellow Foxtail 0 
Silphium integrifolium Rosin Weed 5 
Solanum carolinense Horse Nettles -2 
Solidago canadensis Canada Goldenrod 1 
Solidago ulmifolia Elm-Leaved Goldenrod 5 
Sporobolus vaginiflorus Sheathed Rush Grass 2 
Taraxacum officinale Dandelion 1 
Teucrium occidentale Germander 3 
Tilia americana Basswood 5 
Typha latifolia Cattail 1 

Appendix APage 103 of 114



 16

Ulmus americana American Elm 3 
Ulmus rubra Slippery Elm 4 
Urtica procera Nettles 2 
Verbascum thapsus Mullien 1 
Verbena hastata Blue Vervain 4 
Verbena stricta Hoary Vervain 4 
Verbena urticifolia White Vervain 5 
Vernonia fasciculata Ironweed 5 
Vitis riparia Wild Grape 4 
Xanthium strumarium Cocklebur -2 
Xanthoxylum americana Prickly Ash 1 
  C-value 2.46591
   Total species 88
   I-Value 23.1323

 

Exhibit B: Species List: Birds & Mammals 
 
Birds: 
Common Grackle 
American Robin 
House Wren 
Red-winged Blackbird 
Chimney Swift* 
Barn Swallow 
Song Sparrow 
Northern Cardinal 
Eastern Meadowlark 
Savanna Sparrow* 
Brown-headed Cowbird 
American Crow 
American Goldfinch 
Field Sparrow* 
Eastern kingbird 
Common Yellowthroat 
Indigo Bunting 
Scarlet Tanager 
Rose-breasted Grosbeak 
Gray Catbird 
Blue Jay 
Turkey Vulture 
Baltimore Oriole 
Red-tailed Hawk 
Northern Flicker* 

Appendix APage 104 of 114



 17

Eastern Bluebird 
European Starling 
Eastern Towhee 
Eastern Phoebe 
White-breasted Nuthatch 
Bobolink* 
Red-bellied Woodpecker 
Killdeer 
Rock Pigeon 
Sandhill Crane* 
Black Capped Chickadee 
Turkey 
Bald Eagle* 
Barred Owl 
Hairy Woodpecker 
Downy Woodpecker 
Ring-necked Pheasant 
 
Mammals: 
Coyote 
Fox Squirrel 
Grey Squirrel 
White Tailed Deer 
White Tailed Rabbit 

*Indicate Species in Greatest Need of Conservation (SGNC) in Illinois State Wildlife Action 
Plan (2005) 

 

Appendix APage 105 of 114



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 3/24/2015 - 4/30/2015 Apr 09, 2015  07:13PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ALBAUGH, ROBERT CRAIG (1084)
040115 1 Invoice REIMBURSEMENT 04/01/2015 102.00 78.32.464.02

Total ALBAUGH, ROBERT CRAIG (1084): 102.00

ALL AMERICAN SEAMLESS GUTTERS (119605)
080214 1 Invoice PROPERTY DAMAGE FR 08/02/2014 275.00 01.41.517.02

Total ALL AMERICAN SEAMLESS GUTTERS (119605): 275.00

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
040115 1 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 04/01/2015 327.85 01.21.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 327.85

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
040115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/LONG DI 04/01/2015 .94 01.41.552.00
040115 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 04/01/2015 5.24 22.22.552.00
040115 3 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 04/01/2015 191.46 01.21.552.00
040115 4 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  04/01/2015 802.50 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 1,000.14

BARANSKI, HAMMER,  (375)
1402-10 1 Invoice CONSTRUCTION ADMINI 04/01/2015 280.00 01.13.820.00

Total BARANSKI, HAMMER,  (375): 280.00

BLACKHAWK SPRINKLERS (616)
82494 1 Invoice ANNUAL INSPECTION 03/20/2015 216.00 01.13.511.01
82495 1 Invoice SPRINKLER SYSTEM TE 03/20/2015 267.50 22.22.611.00
82496 1 Invoice INSPECT SPRINKLER SY 03/20/2015 370.50 58.54.511.00

Total BLACKHAWK SPRINKLERS (616): 854.00

BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854)
0161907 1 Invoice SIGN/BARRICADES 03/30/2015 86.69 01.41.652.04
0161908 1 Invoice SIGN/BARRICADES 03/30/2015 374.94 01.41.652.04

Total BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854): 461.63

BUSS BOYZ CUSTOMS, INC. (119356)
5360 1 Invoice REPAIRS/SQUAD #3 AND  03/20/2015 255.50 01.21.513.06

Total BUSS BOYZ CUSTOMS, INC. (119356): 255.50

CARLSON, DONALD (120064)
041314 1 Invoice CREDIT BALANCE REFU 04/13/2014 11.92 98.115.0

Total CARLSON, DONALD (120064): 11.92

CHIEF LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY (119909)
250737 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/LORI 03/27/2015 127.92 01.21.471.15

Page 106 of 114



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 3/24/2015 - 4/30/2015 Apr 09, 2015  07:13PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total CHIEF LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY (119909): 127.92

COMMUNITY FUNDING & PLANNING SERV. (119937)
01 1 Invoice GRANT ADMINISTRATIO 04/01/2015 3,850.00 52.43.549.00

01A 1 Invoice GRANT ADMINISTRATIO 04/01/2015 501.00 52.43.549.00

Total COMMUNITY FUNDING & PLANNING SERV. (119937): 4,351.00

CONMAT, INC. (1187)
94339 1 Invoice WASHOUTS 03/18/2015 321.87 01.41.614.04
94388 1 Invoice COLD PATCH 03/25/2015 510.00 15.41.614.00
94388 2 Invoice SCHOOL SECTION WAS 03/25/2015 121.58 01.41.514.06
94388 3 Invoice WASHOUTS 03/25/2015 182.23 01.41.614.04

Total CONMAT, INC. (1187): 1,135.68

DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1)
1260219 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 03/16/2015 253.19 01.13.579.00
1269616 1 Invoice STAPLES 03/30/2015 129.10 01.13.579.00

Total DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1): 382.29

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
449604 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 04/07/2015 370.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 370.00

E.J. VOGGENTHALER CO. (120066)
S6332 1 Invoice STORM SEWER REPAIR 03/23/2015 139.76 01.41.514.06

Total E.J. VOGGENTHALER CO. (120066): 139.76

FARM & FLEET/SYNCB (120040)
040115 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 04/01/2015 23.18 01.41.652.00

Total FARM & FLEET/SYNCB (120040): 23.18

FELD FIRE (119879)
0276164 1 Invoice SCBA EQUIPMENT 03/19/2015 278.00 22.22.840.00

Total FELD FIRE (119879): 278.00

G & K SERVICES (532)
040115 1 Invoice UNIFORM SERVICES 04/01/2015 411.68 01.41.579.02

Total G & K SERVICES (532): 411.68

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00041712 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 03/20/2015 34.20 01.16.553.00

040115 1 Invoice BUILDING OFFICIAL JOB  04/14/2015 374.40 01.46.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 408.60

Page 107 of 114



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 3/24/2015 - 4/30/2015 Apr 09, 2015  07:13PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84)
040115 1 Invoice FINANCE-LAUNDRY SER 04/01/2015 8.00 01.13.654.00
040115 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT 04/01/2015 25.00 22.22.651.00
040115 3 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT 04/01/2015 50.00 01.21.651.00
040115 4 Invoice TURNER HALL-RUG SER 04/01/2015 27.00 58.54.654.01

Total GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84): 110.00

GALENA LUMBER CO. (85)
20300 1 Invoice TRAINING CENTER SUPP 03/24/2015 250.77 22.22.844.04
20329 1 Invoice MEEKER STREET FOOT  03/25/2015 275.79 01.41.890.04

Total GALENA LUMBER CO. (85): 526.56

GALL'S, INC. (712)
003326005 1 Invoice LOCKOUT KIT/SQUAD 4 03/31/2015 74.07 01.21.513.06

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 74.07

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI004212 1 Invoice SWEEPER 01/21/2015 143.85 01.41.613.11
GWI004354 1 Invoice 2011 FORD 1 TON 02/13/2015 51.65 01.41.613.03
GWI004401 1 Invoice NEW HOLLAND TRACTO 02/22/2015 2,075.59 01.41.613.10
GWI004456 1 Invoice 2011 INTERNATIONAL D 03/03/2015 275.76 01.41.613.06
GWI004669 1 Invoice BACKHOE BOOM/REBUIL 04/08/2015 2,595.67 01.41.613.07

GWO004787 1 Invoice 2011 INTERNATIONAL D 01/21/2015 54.92 01.41.613.06
GWO004936 1 Invoice TRACTOR 02/20/2015 66.83 01.41.613.10
GWO004969 1 Invoice 07 STERLING DUMP 02/20/2015 97.01 01.41.613.05
GWO004977 1 Invoice 2011 INTERNATIONAL D 02/20/2015 21.22 01.41.613.06
GWO005002 1 Invoice BACKHOE 03/06/2015 12.77 01.41.613.07
GWO005012 1 Invoice 2011 INTERNATIONAL D 02/26/2015 142.95 01.41.613.06
GWO005043 1 Invoice 1-TON 03/03/2015 52.77 01.41.613.03
GWO005190 1 Invoice 07 1-TON SPREADER 03/24/2015 50.90 01.41.613.12

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 5,641.89

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
040115 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 04/01/2015 240.00 01.13.511.07
040115 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  04/01/2015 225.00 01.13.511.08

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 465.00

HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD. (119090)
D656591 1 Invoice METERS 03/16/2015 3,764.86 51.42.831.00

Total HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD. (119090): 3,764.86

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)
040115 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  04/01/2015 8,722.00 01.218.0
040115 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  04/01/2015 792.00 01.218.0
040115 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 04/01/2015 43,832.18 01.13.451.00
040115 4 Invoice W/BLUE CROSS/BLUE S 04/01/2015 1,751.42 78.32.464.02

Page 108 of 114



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 3/24/2015 - 4/30/2015 Apr 09, 2015  07:13PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 55,097.60

HOLLAND PLUMBING, INC. (964)
124401 1 Invoice BLACKSMITH SHOP PLU 03/16/2015 194.37 01.13.511.03
124457 1 Invoice BLACKSMITH SHOP PLU 03/27/2015 33.22 01.13.511.03

Total HOLLAND PLUMBING, INC. (964): 227.59

IFIBER (119998)
150211 1 Invoice IFIBER 04/01/2015 300.00 22.22.652.00

Total IFIBER (119998): 300.00

IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967)
T1528462 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 03/16/2015 232.60 01.21.542.00

Total IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967): 232.60

IL ENVIRON. PROTECT. AGENCY (119041)
031315 1 Invoice EPA WATER LOAN 03/13/2015 81,048.29 51.42.716.00

Total IL ENVIRON. PROTECT. AGENCY (119041): 81,048.29

ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152)
030115 1 Invoice BACKGROUND CHECK 03/01/2015 59.50 01.21.549.00

Total ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152): 59.50

IMTA MEMBERSHIP/D. MEADOWS (120067)
040115 1 Invoice IMTA DUES 04/01/2015 60.00 01.11.561.00

Total IMTA MEMBERSHIP/D. MEADOWS (120067): 60.00

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
1503109 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 03/18/2015 1,061.00 01.41.514.06

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 1,061.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
040115 1 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 04/01/2015 647.42 01.13.571.01
040115 2 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 04/01/2015 612.16 01.21.571.01
040115 3 Invoice EMS 04/01/2015 108.35 12.10.571.01
040115 4 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 04/01/2015 97.85 17.52.571.01
040115 5 Invoice FLOOD 04/01/2015 433.29 20.25.576.01
040115 6 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 04/01/2015 343.51 22.22.576.01
040115 7 Invoice TURNER HALL 04/01/2015 476.75 58.54.571.01
040115 8 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 04/01/2015 29.85 01.41.571.01
040115 9 Invoice ELECTRIC 04/01/2015 6,149.76 15.41.572.00

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 8,898.94

JO DAVIESS COUNTY TREAS. (MFT) (119855)
3153 1 Invoice SALT 03/30/2015 5,822.30 01.41.614.07

Page 109 of 114



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 3/24/2015 - 4/30/2015 Apr 09, 2015  07:13PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total JO DAVIESS COUNTY TREAS. (MFT) (119855): 5,822.30

JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330)
033015 1 Invoice GIS MAP 03/30/2015 35.28 01.45.532.01

Total JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330): 35.28

JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121)
031815 1 Invoice ANNUAL GUEST HOUSE I 03/18/2015 550.00 01.16.546.00
032415 1 Invoice SMALL INN INSPECTION 03/24/2015 600.00 01.16.546.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121): 1,150.00

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
040115 1 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 04/01/2015 100.00 22.22.538.00
040115 2 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 04/01/2015 200.12 01.21.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
040115 1 Invoice clothing 04/01/2015 171.98 01.41.471.09
040115 2 Invoice TOOLS/SUPPLIES 04/01/2015 117.94 01.41.652.00
040115 3 Invoice TOOLS/SUPPLIES 04/01/2015 111.98 01.41.653.00

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 401.90

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9303184360 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 04/02/2015 462.26 20.25.652.02

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 462.26

LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943)
20034 1 Invoice CAR REPAIR 03/24/2015 55.45 01.41.613.12

Total LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943): 55.45

LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MGMT. INC (376)
1343164-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 03/31/2015 30.00 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MGMT. INC (376): 30.00

MCGREEVY WILLIAMS LAW OFFICE (119647)
143123 1 Invoice SCENIC MEADOWS LITIG 03/16/2015 195.00 01.41.863.11

Total MCGREEVY WILLIAMS LAW OFFICE (119647): 195.00

MCGUIRE, THOMAS F. & ASSOC. LTD. (120016)
031715 1 Invoice BARKLOW ARBITRATION  03/17/2015 1,486.65 01.11.549.00

Total MCGUIRE, THOMAS F. & ASSOC. LTD. (120016): 1,486.65

MENARDS (280)
71556 1 Invoice MEEKER STREET FOOTB 03/19/2015 186.76 01.41.614.05

Page 110 of 114



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 3/24/2015 - 4/30/2015 Apr 09, 2015  07:13PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

72047 1 Invoice SPLASHDOWN/TILE WO 03/26/2015 479.36 59.55.511.02
72367 1 Invoice CAR CHARGER INSTALL 03/31/2015 60.64 01.41.614.04

Total MENARDS (280): 726.76

METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775)
040115 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE DENTAL 04/01/2015 1,763.00 01.13.451.01
040115 2 Invoice LIFE & DENTAL INSURAN 04/01/2015 248.96 01.13.452.00

Total METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775): 2,011.96

MONTGOMERY TIMMERMAN, INC. (119350)
040515 1 Invoice CITY HALL REMODEL 04/05/2015 34,756.70 01.13.820.00

Total MONTGOMERY TIMMERMAN, INC. (119350): 34,756.70

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
040115 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 04/01/2015 13,402.60 13.44.540.04
040115 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 04/01/2015 4,635.90 13.44.540.00
040115 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 04/01/2015 60.00 13.44.544.03
040115 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 04/01/2015 252.50 01.41.573.00

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 18,351.00

MORAN, MARK (922)
033015 1 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 03/30/2015 23.00 01.11.562.00
040115 1 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 04/01/2015 19.99 01.11.562.00

Total MORAN, MARK (922): 42.99

MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135)
86551 1 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 03/24/2015 49.65 58.54.654.01

Total MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135): 49.65

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
040115 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN 04/01/2015 48.96 17.52.514.00

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 48.96

NICOR (151)
040115 1 Invoice MARKETHOUSE RESTRO 04/01/2015 94.71 01.13.511.06
040115 2 Invoice POOL-GAS 04/01/2015 320.16 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 414.87

NICOR (F) (118924)
040115 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 04/01/2015 145.07 01.13.571.05
040115 2 Invoice POLICE-GAS 04/01/2015 429.33 01.21.571.05
040115 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 04/01/2015 710.44 01.41.571.05
040115 4 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 04/01/2015 515.80 22.22.571.05
040115 5 Invoice TURNER HALL-GAS 04/01/2015 1,124.51 58.54.571.05

Page 111 of 114



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 3/24/2015 - 4/30/2015 Apr 09, 2015  07:13PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 2,925.15

NW IL CRIMINAL JUST.COM. (155)
032715 1 Invoice TRAINING NWICJC 03/27/2015 795.68 01.21.563.00

Total NW IL CRIMINAL JUST.COM. (155): 795.68

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
040115 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL SERVIC 04/01/2015 166.30 01.13.511.01

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 166.30

PRECISION MIDWEST (120065)
0019923 1 Invoice GPS UNIT 02/04/2015 5,025.00 01.41.514.11

Total PRECISION MIDWEST (120065): 5,025.00

QUILL CORP. (686)
2466932 1 Invoice LESSON HANDOUTS/CH 03/18/2015 116.20 59.55.652.04
2476810 1 Invoice PROGRAM SUPPLIES/LE 03/18/2015 13.30 59.55.652.04

Total QUILL CORP. (686): 129.50

R T & T REPAIRS (119911)
9339 1 Invoice TRUCK 172 REPAIRS 02/13/2015 153.25 22.22.613.00

Total R T & T REPAIRS (119911): 153.25

SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048)
15-003-33 1 Invoice DEFRIBILLATOR ELECTR 03/20/2015 166.75 01.21.652.04

Total SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048): 166.75

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0436270 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 03/30/2015 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555)
410944 1 Invoice BARRICADES 03/20/2015 149.43 01.41.652.04

Total SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555): 149.43

SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196)
291950 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 04/02/2015 282.91 17.52.514.00

Total SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196): 282.91

STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY (120058)
S004987871. 1 Invoice EV CHARGING STATION 03/30/2015 7,489.00 01.41.514.11

Total STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY (120058): 7,489.00

Page 112 of 114



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 3/24/2015 - 4/30/2015 Apr 09, 2015  07:13PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
040115 1 Invoice FUEL 04/01/2015 1,070.05 01.41.655.00

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 1,070.05

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
1955 1 Invoice BIKE TRAIL/PORTA POTT 03/31/2015 180.00 17.52.579.01

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 180.00

TRI-STATE SCREEN PRINTING (119187)
13715 1 Invoice TAXI LICENSE 03/23/2015 21.00 01.14.554.00
13762 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/lori 04/06/2015 43.50 01.21.471.15

Total TRI-STATE SCREEN PRINTING (119187): 64.50

US CELLULAR (92)
040115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 04/01/2015 36.37 01.41.552.00
040115 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 04/01/2015 73.05 01.11.552.00
040115 3 Invoice FIRE DEPT./CELL PHONE 04/01/2015 14.05 22.22.552.00
040115 4 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 04/01/2015 78.11 01.21.552.01

Total US CELLULAR (92): 201.58

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)
6408 1 Invoice PLANT 03/15/2015 60.00 01.21.549.00
6416 1 Invoice PLANT 03/20/2015 60.00 01.21.549.00

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 120.00

VAN METER INC. (141)
S8508635.00 1 Invoice ST. LIGHT MAINTENANC 03/31/2015 131.64 01.41.514.11
SA171543.00 1 Invoice ST. LIGHT MAINTENANC 03/05/2015 286.28 01.41.514.11
SA171979.00 1 Invoice ST. LIGHT MAINTENANC 03/13/2015 504.00 01.41.514.11

Total VAN METER INC. (141): 921.92

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
599720 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 03/19/2015 107.86 01.13.654.00
599721 1 Invoice CLEANING SUPPLIES 03/19/2015 100.66 01.21.654.00
600429 1 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 03/26/2015 113.92 58.54.654.01
601215 1 Invoice TRASH CANS FOR REST 04/02/2015 367.80 58.54.654.01
601216 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 04/02/2015 158.97 01.13.654.00

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 849.21

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
040115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 04/01/2015 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 110.00

WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC., INC. (119914)
20852 1 Invoice DESIGN 03/27/2015 11,718.23 41.61.860.07

Page 113 of 114



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     9
Input Dates: 3/24/2015 - 4/30/2015 Apr 09, 2015  07:13PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC., INC. (119914): 11,718.23

WILSON ELECTRIC CO. (120063)
031615 1 Invoice EV CHARGING STATION 03/16/2015 1,250.00 01.41.514.11

Total WILSON ELECTRIC CO. (120063): 1,250.00

WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666)
13280 1 Invoice COMPUTER MAINTENAN 04/01/2015 35.00 01.21.549.00
13280 2 Invoice COMPUTER MAINTENAN 04/01/2015 262.50 01.13.512.04

Total WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666): 297.50

Grand Totals: 269,198.86

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 6117288
Vendor number hash - split: 7674503
Total number of invoices: 108
Total number of transactions: 144

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 269,198.86 269,198.86

Grand Totals: 269,198.86 269,198.86

Page 114 of 114


	00.00 Agenda 04.13.15ccc
	00.0127 Liquor License Renewals 2015
	Memo to Council for Renewals 2015.2016
	Liquor License Renewal List 2015.2016

	01.0128 Minutes cc032315
	01.0128b Minutes sc040615
	02.0129 Turner Hall and PW Janitorial
	white contracts
	Turner Hall Janitorial Contract
	Public Works Janitorial Contract

	03.0131 Tour License Memo 2015
	04.0133 VisitGalena.org Budget Packet
	05.0134 EMS Resolution
	06.0135 Diagonal St Wall Bieds
	07.0136 Fire Training Change Order #3
	08.0137 Fire Training Consultant
	09.0138 Derailment Cost Recovery
	cost recovery memo
	Personnel Cost Recovery Worksheet
	Equipment Cost Recovery Worksheet
	Invoice Update - Galena Train Derailment 6APR2015

	10.0139 Pay and Display Machine
	pay dis memo
	Pay and Display Machine
	Pay and Display 2

	11.0140 Dodge Street Water Tower Fence
	dodge memo
	Dodge Street Water Tower Fence
	110 S Dodge Fence & Landscaping Plan 2013
	Dodge Street Fence
	DOC010
	DOC011

	Dodge Street fencing estimate


	12.0141 Cobblestone Crossing Sidewalk
	cobb memo
	Cobblestone Crossing Ordinance
	07.0053 Cobblestone Crossing Ordinance
	cobblestone memo
	Cobblestone Sidewalks JAN2015
	cobblestone ordinance
	cobblestone agreement

	Pages from 07.0053 Cobblestone Crossing Ordinance-2


	13.0142 Budget memorandum
	council approval memo
	Budget Changes Worksession 1
	Budget Cut Response Plan

	14.0143Gateway Park Memo of Understanding
	Gateway Park Memo of Understanding
	Gateway Park Management Plan

	15.0144 Warrants 04.13.15



